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-I— Financial Highlights
MBME

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of HHERNMEEERARAR(AXAAT])E
C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to =((EE)g((EEg))MASHAEAF
announce the annual consolidated results of the Company and LEWB AR (SEIRER]) HE2018F
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 NRANBULEFEMNEFREER  ERE
December 2018, together with the comparative figures for the F2017F 12 A31BIEFEMLRET -

year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B S

T

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Revenue g 429,374 311,228 38.0%
Gross profit EF 149,337 135,431 10.3%
Profit for the year FER R HE 42,571 40,127 6.1%
Adjusted net profit for the year™& £ P 4% 5 % % 7§ (V2@ 44,592 64,287 -30.6%
Gross profit margin (%) FEFE (%) 34.8% 435% -8.7ppEEDE
Net profit margin (%) FHEE (%) 9.9% 12.9% -3.0ppEE DB
Adjusted net profit margin (%)"&@ £ J8 B 5 F) & (%) E@ 10.4% 20.7% -10.3pp & 5 B
Notes: Htet -
(1) Adjusted net profit is derived by adding listing expenses from the (1) AEFHEEFRE B LW X B RE A E AR

net profit for the year.

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure (2)

that is not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs
and is therefore referred to as a “non-GAAP” financial measure. It
is not a measurement of the Group’s financial performance under
HKFRSs and should not be considered as an alternative to profit
from operations or any other performance measures derived in
accordance with HKFRSs or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities or as a measure of the Group’s liquidity.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am pleased
to report to all shareholders of the Company the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

SET FOR THE FUTURE

The Group has been actively seeking opportunities for expansion
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") with demand for high
quality ophthalmic services. Other than Beijing, Shenzhen and
Hong Kong, the Group is going to expand its service network
in Kunming and Shanghai by acquisition of eye hospitals, and
Huizhou by set up of a new eye hospital in 2019.

On 26 March 2019, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire 100% equity interest of Shanghai Lucida Medical
Scientific Ltd in Shanghai which owns and operates an eye
hospital at Huangpu district (¥ /8 [& ), and three clinics located at
Pudong New District (J& 3 ¥7[& ), Yangpu District (15 # [&) and
Putuo District (& FE[R), respectively. Shanghai is an international
city of the PRC with population of over 24 million and a large
population of growing middle-class. The needs for middle-to-high-
end ophthalmic services are huge. The Group can draw on the
successful experience in Shenzhen and Beijing for Shanghai due to
the similar demographic features.

The Group is also expanding the service network to the second-
tier cities of the PRC, Kunming and Huizhou. Acquisition of the
Kunming Eye Hospital is a strategic decision to expand the eye
care service network in Western China (Yunnan Province) for the
Group by leveraging the expertise and the international reputation
of the Group and the local knowledge and experience of the
Kunming Eye Hospital. Establishing an eye hospital in Huizhou,
which is located next to Shenzhen, can further expand the Group’s
service in Guangdong province which the demand for high quality
ophthalmic services is strong.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The management team has been encouraged by the satisfying
results presented in the Group’s annual report to its investors
for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the revenue of the Group amounted to
HK$429.4 million, representing an increase of 38.0% as compared
with HK$311.2 million during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year, driven by the increasing demand for quality
medical services in the target markets of the Group, the Group
has recorded considerable growth, especially in the Group’s PRC
business operations which recorded an increase of revenue of
73.7%.

The business operations of the Group in Hong Kong continued to
be the key revenue contributor to the Group generating a stable
cash inflow with a revenue increase of 15.0% to HK$218.0 million
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The Group established
the fifth satellite clinics in Kwun Tong, Hong Kong in March 2018.
The Group has established a strong service network in different
districts in Hong Kong.

On the other hand, the business operations in the PRC continue to
grow. With the well-established reputation of quality ophthalmic
services that the Group has provided in Shenzhen, the eye
hospital in Shenzhen recorded an increase in revenue of 47.7% to
HK$179.7 million during the year ended 31 December 2018. The
first satellite clinic in Baoan District, Shenzhen has commenced
business operations since November 2018 to strengthen the
service network in Shenzhen.

The eye hospital in Beijing has commenced business since January
2018. The eye hospital in Beijing generated total revenue of
HK$31.7 million and incurred a net loss amounted to HK$23.2
million during the year ended 31 December 2018. While the eye
hospital in Beijing was in the initial investment stage during the
year ended 31 December 2018 and the financial performance of
the eye hospital in Beijing is expected to improve in 2019.

BB
AEBREZE2018F 12 A31HIEFE M
EREEERNFRPEERFELE &
12 B BOE I R BB SR o A= 20184F 12 A
BSTEEFE AEENKREAE42948E
BT REZE2017F12A3MHLEFER
3112BEEBTIER38.0% °

FRN AEEBEEMHEHELZEERSSN
EXRBEBRY)  FEHAEESSABEER -
EPAEERTEMNEFRCELBAY
BRISWERIE R 73.7% ©

REZE2018F12A31BItFE K& H
HWERAELTEREER HKS®EER
15.0% £218.0 B BB L o & B 72018
FIARBABIERSFELEFHEZH - K
EEDRE BT FIMR R 58 KA RIS A4S

S—HE RPBEMEFLCEHELER -
BREALSERFIRESEZRERBEA
BB FEE - REE2018F 12 A31H
IEFE FRYIBRERMNRZIERA7T%
ZE1797BEB T UM FINELZ BN E M
BEZFD BH20185F 11 ARKBE ¥ #it
SB bR B BR 7S A 4% -
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FNRANBLEFERERVFSIRERE - M
It RERR SR B RIREAN2019F 5
FeRE o
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LOOKING FORWARD THE BRIGHT FUTURE

The Group will continue to develop the business reach in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The development of the PRC market is very
encouraging. In addition to the stable economic growth in the
Group, the implementation of the favourable industry policies,
the development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater
Bay Area (BB K [%) and the increasing urbanisation and
living standards of the middle-class population in the PRC are
expected to stimulate the demand for high quality ophthalmic
services. The Group is well prepared to take up the ample business
opportunities by implementing the following strategies:

- Establish or acquire eye hospitals, eye centres and clinics in
Hong Kong and selected PRC cities including cities in Eastern
China, Southwest or Central China and the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area

- Improve the operational capacity and service capability
- Identify suitable strategic partners for collaboration

In conclusion, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my deep gratitude to all of the members of the Board, our
management team, business partners and all colleagues for their
contribution and dedicated efforts for the development of the
Group.

Chairman
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis /P
26 March 2019, Hong Kong

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion And Analysis

EERENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2018, we generated 50.8%
(2017: 60.9%) of our revenue in Hong Kong and 49.2% (2017:
39.1%) in the PRC. Our business had experienced a rapid growth
during the year ended 31 December 2018, generating total
revenue of HK$429.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: HK$311.2 million), representing an increase of
38.0% from the year 2017. In particular, the revenue of the
PRC operations also recorded an increase of 73.7% during
the year ended 31 December 2018 primarily as a result of the
strong growth in revenue of the eye hospital in Shenzhen and
the commencement of business operations of the eye hospital
in Beijing. The revenue from Shenzhen amounted to HK$179.7
million (2017: HK$121.7 million) during the year 31 December
2018, representing a promising growth rate of 47.7%.

Our eye hospital in Beijing has commenced business operations
since January 2018. Our fifth satellite clinic in Hong Kong has
commenced business operations since March 2018 and our
first satellite clinic in Baoan District, Shenzhen has commenced
business operations since November 2018. Our eye hospital in
Beijing generated total revenue of HK$31.7 million and incurred a
net loss amounted to HK$23.2 million during the year ended 31
December 2018. While the eye hospital in Beijing was in the initial
investment stage during the year ended 31 December 2018, our
Directors are satisfied with the performance of the eye hospital in
Beijing, and we expect that its profitability will improve in 2019.

We will further expand our service network in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area (&4 82 K& &) and other
PRC regions.

Our first eye hospital in Huizhou, Guangdong province, is planned
to open during the second half of 2019. The eye hospital in
Huizhou will have ten consultation rooms and three operation
theatres. The eye hospital in Huizhou is expected to strengthen
our service network in Guangdong province.

e JE) ]
e

HZE2018F 12 A31BILEFE - HMP AR
EBNPREEAS50.8% (20174 : 60.9% )
149.2% (20174 :39.1% ) 925 - L =
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Management Discussion And Analysis

On 28 August 2018, we entered into an agreement to acquire
80% of the issued share capital of Kunming Eye Hospital for cash
consideration of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$35,229,000)
and subsequent capital injection of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$23,486,000) to the acquiree. The acquisition of Kunming
Eye Hospital will help the Group to establish the service network
in Southwest China which has increasing demand for high quality
ophthalmic services. The transaction is expected to be completed
by end of April 2019.

On 26 March 2019, the Group entered into an agreement
with independent third parties to acquire 100% equity interest
of Shanghai Lucida Medical Scientific Ltd (the “acquiree”)
in Shanghai, the PRC, at a maximum cash consideration of
RMB82,900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$97,349,000)
which is subject to contingent consideration payments based on
the cash and cash equivalents and equity value of the acquiree
at the date of completion. The acquisition is expected to be
completed by end of June 2019.

Gross profit margin decreased to 34.8% (2017: 43.5%) during
the year ended 31 December 2018 but the amount of gross
profit increased to HK$149.3 million (2017: HK$135.4 million).
The decrease of the gross profit margin was primarily due to the
additional costs of our eye hospital in Beijing which was still at the
initial investment stage.

Although the revenue increased by 38.0% for the year ended
31 December 2018, net profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 increased by only 6.1% to HK$42.6 million, primarily due
to (i) the net losses of the eye hospital in Beijing amounted to
HK$23.2 million and the new satellite clinic in Baoan amounted to
HK$3.8 million during the year ended 31 December 2018 and (ii)
the exchange loss amounted to HK$9.0 million arising from the
depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars in relation to
certain bank deposits denominated in Renminbi which have been
converted into Hong Kong dollars. These two factors decreased
the amount of net profit significantly during the year ended 31
December 2018.

EEENWmR DN

BR20184F 8 A28H » ®HMET 2 —atwa
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Management Discussion And Analysis
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

We are an ophthalmic service provider in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Our ophthalmologists/physicians are specialised in the
fields of cataract, glaucoma, strabismus and refractive surgeries
and external eye diseases. Our revenue is derived from our fees
charged to our clients on consultation and other medical services,
and surgeries as well as the sales of vision aid products, including
glasses and lens. The following table sets forth our revenue for the
years indicated as a percentage of total revenue:

Bt %5 [0 B8
Iz 3%

HAR—RUREE R B RBR 2
W - HMIBRMBELEERANE -FAR -
RR LB F M RRRKME - LI
WaRERDIE BB ERE R FMRE
EPWEH BB L EER D WEE MR (1
RIFRFR) - TREINERARARFEER
Wb ER D

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12831HLLEE

2018 2017 Change
2018 2017 F 2E)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Provision of ophthalmic ~ $R R R AR
services 399,905 93.1 291,076 93.5 108,829 37.4
Sales of vision aid HER NEHEE D
products 29,469 6.9 20,152 6.5 9,317 46.2
Total Bt 429,374 100.0 311,228 100.0 118,146 38.0

Our revenue was generated from Hong Kong and the PRC.
In Hong Kong, our service network included our eye centre in
Central and five satellite clinics. In the PRC, our eye hospitals are
located in Shenzhen and Beijing and a satellite clinic is located in
Shenzhen. The following table sets forth our revenue according to
geographical markets as a percentage of total revenue:

BB EREEFEELRTE - HAEEE
BIREERBRERACRF RO —KBER
hOREREED M BHMEPBEOBRR
BRuR RN RIS I —REEZ A
RFRY > TREIRPRBEMBIZET S D
MU R PTG AU s B Db

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2018 2017 Change
2018 F 20174 HE)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
Hong Kong ) 217,997 50.8 189,507 60.9 28,490 15.0
PRC T 211,377 492 121,721 39.1 89,656 73.7
Total Bt 429,374 100.0 311,228 100.0 118,146 38.0

“ 10 ' C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERMERERERAF



Management Discussion And Analysis

Our total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018
represented an increase of 38.0% as compared with our
total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2017. In
addition to the increase in the sales of visual aid products by
46.2%, the increase was primarily driven by the increase in the
revenue generated from the provision of ophthalmic services to
HK$399.9 million during the year ended 31 December 2018 from
HK$291.1 million during the year ended 31 December 2017,
representing an increase of 37.4%, because of the increase in
the number of surgeries performed by us and the number of our
ophthalmologists/physicians in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The revenue generated from our business operations in Hong
Kong accounted for 50.8% of our total revenue, decreased from
60.9% for the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily because
of the increase in revenue generated from our business operations
in the PRC by 73.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018 which
was at a faster pace than that of Hong Kong of 15.0%.

Provision of ophthalmic services

Our revenue generated from the provision of ophthalmic
services may be broadly divided into two categories, namely (1)
consultation and other medical service fees and (2) surgery fees.
The following table sets forth our revenue by categories for the
years indicated as a percentage of total revenue generated from
the provision of ophthalmic services:

EEENWmR DN

KPR EE2018F 12 A31BIEFEMA
WREHE2017F12A31MBILFENE
I 25 32 £ 38.0% ° BR 4R 0 9 B = @ 8 5 08
Na6.2% 5 - 1K F E2 R 8RN RHIERAR
BEAMKZHAE=2017F12 8318 1k
FEMNNNEESTEMEEE20184F
12A31HIEFEM399E BB T #EiE
B37.4%  RHREMETHFNERE &
BN EE R HAREIEE £ AL IMATEL -

BB B EBKEEEENRZHREMBAIK
FHA50.8%  WEHZE2017F12 A318 1t
FEMNE0I% BB TEZHRER
2018F 12 AV BILFEHRBHEBRLEES
IR ETIT%  RBRES15.0%
HYIZ IR o

1ERRBR T

HAKRERHEBHMBREOREAIANRD B

MR M2 e REMERERBERQ)F

?ﬁ;%? TRET AR FE IR E%'J%J E’JH&Z
@ PTG SR R R AR TS PR 1S A M 2

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HALEE

2018

2018
HK$'000
FET

2017 Change
20174 )
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET

Consultation and other 2% R HbEE

medical service fees AR5 &

- Hong Kong —&5 83,460 20.9 64,251 22.1 19,209 29.9

—PRC — 76,769 19.2 49,284 16.9 27,485 55.8
Sub-total NEF 160,229 40.1 113,535 39.0 46,694 411
Surgery fees Fir e

- Hong Kong —&E 131,888 329 123,871 426 8,017 6.5

—PRC — 107,788 27.0 53,670 18.4 54,118 100.8
Sub-total NEF 239,676 59.9 177,541 61.0 62,135 35.0
Total FEE 399,905 100.0 291,076 100.0 108,829 37.4
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Management Discussion And Analysis
EEENWR DN

The ophthalmic services provided by us are focused on surgeries
for the treatment of not only cataract, glaucoma and strabismus,
but also eye diseases, including corneal and vitreoretinal diseases.
Generally speaking, ophthalmic services are outpatient or day-care
procedures, performed under local anaesthesia. Hence, unlike
other hospitals, clinics or nursing homes, we are not constrained
by bed capacity and do not focus on providing large inpatient
facilities at our eye centres/hospitals or clinics.

The following table sets forth the total surgery fees, the total
number of surgeries performed by us and the average fee per
surgery:

HFRHEOBRHREZ I RAANE
FAREFEOFMARL AR FKIFER
MIRARBERBKRE - — &M s - REHR
BRVNBEME TETHPFIZ R ARERE
AR At BEAMER  ZASRERR
BRl R RUBTERS FIEFT
REFIH RO B T 32 Prig KA
{EBEaRIE °

TR FMELRE HIETHFNR
L EBHFMEFHER

Year ended 31 December

BZE128318LEE

For Hong Kong 5B

Total surgery fee (in HK$'000) FirBHEE(THET)

Number of surgeries performed BPETHFITEE
by us

Average surgery fee (HK$) FHFMmME (B

For PRC A

Total surgery fee (in HK$'000) FirBEHEE(THET)

Number of surgeries performed BIETHFMEE
by us

Average surgery fee (HK$) T FiE (ET)

2018 2017
2018 20174
131,888 123,871 6.5
3,779 3,205 17.9
34,900 38,649 -9.7
107,788 53,670 100.8
7,202 3,865 86.3
14,966 13,886 7.8

In Hong Kong, the average surgery fee decreased by 9.7% due
to the change of the type of surgery mix. The surgery volume
increased during the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of
the increasing number of our Hong Kong Ophthalmologists.

In the PRC, the average surgery fee increased by 7.8% due to
the nature of surgery undertaken by us during the year ended 31
December 2018 and the number of surgeries increased by 86.3%
to 7,202 during the year ended 31 December 2018 mainly due
to the commence of operations of the eye hospital in Beijing and
especially the strong growth contributed by the eye hospital in
Shenzhen.

EEE AR FHAHEANES  FiY
FMETIT% - B E2018F 12 A31H
HFEE AREBREIEE AZEMN &
FirgEHFTIBM -
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Management Discussion And Analysis

Sales of vision aid products

We also generate revenue from the sales of vision aid products
including glasses and lens. The sales were conducted by us
through the assessment of the optometrists employed by us in
Hong Kong and the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2018, our revenue generated from the sales of vision aid products
amounted to HK$29.5 million, representing an increase of 46.2%
from that of last year.

Cost of revenue

The following table sets forth an analysis of our cost of revenue
for the years indicated, both in terms of Hong Kong dollars and as
a percentage of total revenue:

BEEEFNWR DN

HER LB E i
HPTEHER D W E M (MIRE MR
F) R - RPVEBNEE K+ EIE
FRAR AR R RF T IHE - BLE 20184
12ZANBLEFEERE  HFIKEHERNE
EmMRER295B8 8B REFIEN
46.2% °

HERAE
TREIRMRAARFEOHERA (G
BITARAEBY I B 2 IR DT

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12831HLLEE

2018 2017 Change
2018 F 20174 #
% to % to
HKS$’000 revenue  HK$'000 revenue  HK$'000
1 Wz oz
FET B FET =) FET
Doctors’ consultation fees 4% & 80,874 18.8 68,535 22.0 12,339 18.0
Cost of inventories and ~ F & &AM KA
consumables 75,150 17.5 39,773 12.8 35,377 88.9
Staff salaries and ETHS MR
allowance 54,723 12.7 32,270 104 22,453 69.6
Rent and rates e K= 33,955 7.9 17,257 5.5 16,698 96.8
Depreciation e 21,546 5.0 6,958 2.2 14,588 209.7
Others Hith 13,789 3.3 11,004 36 2,785 25.3
Total Bt 280,037 65.2 175,797 56.5 104,240 59.3

Comparing with that of the year ended 31 December 2017, there
were four new service locations commenced into operations to
meet the increased demand of ophthalmic services, including
two locations in the PRC (the eye hospital in Beijing and the first
satellite clinic in Baoan, Shenzhen) and two locations in Hong
Kong (the fifth satellite clinic in Kwun Tong and the surgery centre
in Mong Kok).

Accordingly, our cost of revenue increased by 59.3% from
HK$175.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
HK$280.0 million for the year 31 December 2018, primarily as a
result of (i) an increase in cost of inventories and consumables of
HK$35.4 million, (ii) an increase in staff salaries and allowance of
HK$22.5 million and (iii) an increase in rent and rates of HK$16.7
million.

EEZE2017F12831HIEFELE - T
MFRBHRLIEAESL  BIERPEAM
FREP L UERBERER DFRIINELNE
BMEEZ A RREENRERES O (R
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth our gross profit and gross profit
margin according to geographical markets for the years indicated:

ERNRENR

TRESIRFRNFREFRIBETIHE S
GE I EIEE

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2018 2017 Change
2018 F 2017 4 p)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Hong Kong BB 65,634 30.1 66,722 35.2 (1,088) (1.6)
PRC H 83,703 39.6 68,709 56.4 14,994 21.8
149,337 34.8 135,431 43.5 13,906 10.3

The amount of gross profit during the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$149.3 million, representing an increase
of 10.3% from HK$135.4 million during the year ended 31
December 2017. Our gross profit margin was 34.8% during the
year ended 31 December 2018, as compared with 43.5% during
the year ended 31 December 2017. The gross profit margin
for our business operations in the PRC recorded a decrease to
39.6% from 56.4% primarily due to the increased costs from the
eye hospital in Beijing. The gross profit margin for our business
operations in Hong Kong also recorded a decrease from 35.2% to
30.1% primarily due to the increased costs from the fifth satellite
clinic in Kwun Tong and the surgery centre in Mong Kok in which
new locations usually take some time to build the client base.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses increased by 134.5% from HK$11.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$26.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, primarily due to an increase in
promotional expenses in the PRC. The amount of selling expenses,
as a percentage of our total revenue, slightly increased from 3.6%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 6.2% for the year ended
31 December 2018. The fees paid to online platforms represented
the major component of our selling expenses.

HE2018F12A3MBIEFENEFN &5
BI1493BE BT WA E20179F12 A 31
HIEFEMI13548 8B TER103% -
HE2018F12A3MBIEFENENXA
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RIERBRIERAR AL - KN EE
EBEEENENMESTE  8352%
RE301% TEE2ARBEFABRGE
ZETREAFMR ORI - P
DESEREVERFE -
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Management Discussion And Analysis

Administrative expenses

Our total administrative expenses during the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$66.9 million, consisting of listing
expenses amounted to HK$2.0 million and other administrative
expenses amounted to HK$64.9 million.

The other administrative expenses had an increase of 48.8%
as compared with HK$43.6 million during the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase in our other administrative expenses
during the year was primarily driven by the increase in our staff
salaries and allowance as a result of business expansion, especially
for the new eye hospital in Beijing.

Other income

Our other income during the year ended 31 December 2018
increased to HK$14.3 million from HK$2.4 million during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase was primarily due to the
increase in the interest income and miscellaneous income.

Other (losses)/gains, net

Our other losses, net during the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$8.9 million mainly consisted of exchange
losses as a result of the depreciation of Renminbi against Hong
Kong dollars in relation to certain bank deposits denominated
in Renminbi maintained by the Group in Hong Kong. Such short
term bank deposits have been converted into Hong Kong dollars
during mid of July 2018.

Finance expenses

Our finance expenses decreased from HK$0.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK$0.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, primarily because of the repayment of bank
loans.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense during the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$18.6 million, representing an increase by
1.1% from HK$18.4 million during the year ended 31 December
2017. The increase was primarily due to the increase of the profit
before tax of the eye hospital in Shenzhen.

BEEEFNWR DN
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Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 increased by 6.1% to HK$42.6 million.

If excluding (i) the net losses of the eye hospital in Beijing
amounted to HK$23.2 million and the new satellite clinic in Baoan
amounted to HK$3.8 million during the year ended 31 December
2018 and (ii) the exchange loss amounted to HK$9.0 million from
the bank deposits denominated in Renminbi, the net profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 would be HK$78.6
million.

Capital expenditure and commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of HK$34.4 million, primarily due to purchases of
medical equipment and leasehold improvement.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total capital
commitment of approximately HK$0.5 million (2017: HK$9.5
million), mainly comprising the related contracts of capital
expenditure for medical equipment.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total borrowings of
HK$2.5 million.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December
2018.

Pledge of assets

The Group had no pledge of assets as at 31 December 2018.

Financial instruments

Our major financial instruments include trade receivables, other
receivables excluding prepayments, cash and cash equivalents,
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
borrowings, trade payables and other payables excluding non-
financial liabilities. Our management manages such exposure to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio is not applicable due
to net cash position (2017: same).

Foreign exchange risk

Our subsidiaries mainly operate in Hong Kong and the PRC with
most of the transactions settled in HK$ and RMB, respectively.
Foreign exchange rate risk arises when recognised financial assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2018, the financial assets and liabilities of our
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, respectively. Currently, the
Group has not entered into agreements or purchased instruments
to hedge the Group’s foreign exchange rate risks. Any material
fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars or
Renminbi may have an impact on the operating results of the
Group. The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. We do not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk mainly arises from finance
lease liabilities at fixed interest rates.

Credit risk

Our credit risk mainly arises from trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, bank deposits with original maturity over three
months and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated balance sheet.

The credit risk of bank deposits with original maturity over three
months and cash and cash equivalents are limited because the
counterparties are state-owned or reputable commercial banks
which are high-credit-quality financial institutions located in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

EEENWmR DN
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We have a highly diversified source of patients, without any
single patient contributing material revenue. Moreover, some
of our revenue is settled by reputable commercial companies
and local government on behalf of patients. We have controls
to closely monitor the patients’ billing and payment status by
communication with commercial companies and local government
to minimise the credit risk.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 456
employees (2017: 301). The increase in the number of employees
was mainly due to the increase in the scale of the Group’s
business. The total staff cost of the Group (including salaries,
bonuses, social insurances, provident funds and share incentive
schemes) amounted to HK$87.1 million (2017: HK$53.0 million).

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive from time to time. Employees
are remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus annual
performance related bonus. Share options are granted to
employees to reward their contributions under the share option
scheme of the Company, details of which will be set forth in
the Report of the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected
employees to attend external training courses that suit the needs
of the Group’s business.

Events after the balance sheet date

On 15 February 2019, we entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to establish a new hospital in Huizhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC. We will inject RMB14,000,000
(equivalent to HK$16,440,000) to the new hospital and own
70% of its equity interests, while the other investor will inject
RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,046,000) and own the
remaining 30% equity interests.

On 26 March 2019, the Group entered into an agreement with
independent third parties to acquire 100% equity interest of
Shanghai Lucida Medical Scientific Ltd in Shanghai, the PRC, at
a maximum cash consideration of RMB82,900,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$97,349,000) which is subject to contingent
consideration payments based on the cash and cash equivalents
and equity value of the acquiree at the date of completion. Up to
the date of this report, the acquisition has not been completed.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

The implementation of the favorable policies to the medical
industry in the PRC, the development of the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area (B8 8 X #[&) and the
increasing urbanisation and living standards of the middle-class
population in the PRC are expected to stimulate the demand for
high-quality ophthalmic services. The Group is prepared to the
business opportunity by implementing the following strategies:

Establish or acquire eye hospitals, eye centres and
clinics in Hong Kong and selected PRC cities including
cities in Eastern China, Southwest or Central China
and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay
Area.

Leveraging our experience in Hong Kong and Shenzhen, we
intend to further increase our penetration in Hong Kong and
the PRC. We believe we can draw on our experience in having
successfully established and achieving profitable operation at
Shenzhen C-MER Eye Hospital to expand further into selected PRC
cities where the demand and growth potential for ophthalmic
services is substantial. Currently, we intend to expand into other
selected PRC cities that have similar demographic features and
medical resources as Beijing and Shenzhen, by either setting up
new hospitals or acquiring operating hospitals, centres or clinics
when desirable opportunities arise.

Improve our operational capacity and service
capability.

We will continue to dedicate our efforts to maintaining our
high service standards and strive to give our clients quality
ophthalmic services. We will continue to invest in advanced
medical equipment and information technology infrastructure to
enhance the quality and efficiency of our practice and to ensure
our clients are provided with the most appropriate treatment.
We will purchase additional LASIK equipment and enhance the
information technology system for upgrading the document
management systems for our patient records and the related
information technology systems.

Identify suitable strategic partners for collaboration.

We may explore opportunities for strategic partnerships, alliances
and investment opportunities in order to extend our network into
the regions and markets where we do not have a presence.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our liquidity requirements are primarily attributable to our
working capital for our business operations. Our principal sources
of liquidity are cash generated from our business operations. As at
31 December 2018, we had cash and bank balances of HK$471.8
million and short-term bank deposits of HK$249.1 million.

The current ratio (calculated as current assets over current
liabilities) was 14.84 times as at 31 December 2018 compared
with 1.46 times as at 31 December 2017.

Net cash generated from operating activities was HK$40.9 million
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$65.5
million). The decrease was mainly attributed to decrease in cash
generated from operations during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to HK$274.6
million during the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to
HK$89.9 million during the year ended 31 December 2017. The
Group invested approximately HK$249.1 million for bank deposits
with original maturity over three months and approximately
HK$29.8 million for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, net cash generated
from financing activities amounted to HK$630.4 million, as
compared to HK$41.2 million during the year ended 31 December
2017. The cash inflow from financing activities for the year ended
31 December 2018 was mainly attributable to the proceeds from
the issuance of shares (“Shares”) of the Company amounted to
HK$657.0 million.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any significant investments, acquisitions or disposals, save for the
acquisition of the 80% equity interest of Kunming Eye Hospital.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
28 August 2018, 1 February 2019 and 28 March 2019.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15 January 2018 (the
“Listing Date”) (the “Listing”), and the net proceeds from the
global offering (the “Global Offering”) amounted to HK$609.8
million.

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the Group used
the net proceeds amounted to HK$10.0 million, which included
property, plant and equipment and cash for operations, for the
set-up of the first satellite clinic in Baoan, Shenzhen.

Set out below is the intended use of proceeds as set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 29 December 2017 (the
“Prospectus”), utilised amount and unutilised amount of net
proceeds as at 31 December 2018.
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in selected PRC cities R BT 42.5% 259,200 - 259,200
For establishing three eye BT B B T
hospitals in selected PRC cities R = KRR 40.4% 246,400 - 246,400
For establishing two satellite BRERINNEL
clinics in Shenzhen MEREDHT 4.2% 25,600 (10,000) 15,600
For upgrading our medical ARTEEB R BEAR
equipment and enhancing BEREREEEN
our information technology REESD
system in Hong Kong and
the PRC 8.5% 51,800 - 51,800
For our working capital and RiEgEES R
general corporate purpose —WERR 4.4% 26,800 - 26,800
Total Bt 100.0% 609,800 (10,000) 599,800

The Directors are reviewing the business opportunities available
to the Group from time to time for the purpose of using the net
proceeds for the purposes stated in the Prospectus. The Directors

EELTHBEANEEODE - KM
GREFERFRARERMIABE -EF
B RRBEMBRBFENRERE

do not anticipate that there will be any material change to the
proposed use of the net proceeds from the Global Offering.

TEETMEALS -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP (# )i 8 & 4 ), aged 59, is the
Chairman of the Board and our Chief Executive Officer and our
executive Director. Dr. Dennis LAM is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Dennis LAM is our founder
and has been leading our business growth over five years. Dr.
Dennis LAM obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in November 1984.
Dr. Dennis LAM has become a Fellow of The Royal College of
Surgeons of Edinburgh since 1988, Fellow of The Royal College
of Ophthalmologists since 1990 and a Fellow of The College of
Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong since 1994. Dr. Dennis LAM
obtained the Doctor of Medicine degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2003. Dr. Dennis LAM has been a
registered medical practitioner in Hong Kong since 1984, and a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the speciality of
ophthalmology since 1998.

Dr. Dennis LAM is the Past President of the Asia-Pacific Academy
of Ophthalmology (APAO) and the Editor-in-Chief of the Asia-
Pacific Journal of Ophthalmology (APJO). Dr. Dennis LAM is the
President of the Asia-Pacific Vitreo-Retina Society (APVRS), a
Chair of the Academia Ophthalmologica Internationalis (AOI), a
member of the board of trustee of the International Council of
Ophthalmology (ICO), an International Council representative
of the International Society of Refractive Surgery (ISRS) in 2015
and 2016, and a member of the Board of Governors of World
Glaucoma Association (WGA). Dr. Dennis LAM was the Associate
Dean (External Affairs) of the Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong from 2004 to 2009. Dr. Dennis LAM
was also the Chairman of the Department of Ophthalmology &
Visual Sciences, The Chinese University of Hong Kong for 13 years
(from 1998 to 2011). Over the years, a number of awards have
been bestowed to Dr. Dennis LAM, including: “Ten Outstanding
Young Persons” "awarded by the Hong Kong Junior Chamber
of Commerce in 1994; “Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the
World” awarded by the Junior Chamber International in 1995,
“Young Leader of Hong Kong” in 1998, "World Economic
Forum's Hundred Global Leader for Tomorrow” in 2000, “Hong
Kong Humanity Award” in 2007, the “Educator Award” of Asia-
Pacific Association of Cataract & Refractive Surgeons in 2005,
the prestigious “Golden Apple Award” for the Best Clinical
Teacher in the Asia-Pacific region issued by the International

HITES

MIEHEE (K FHL) 595 EFEE
BTN RITES - MIBEHE LT
REARBETHBRARINESE - HRIEHE
ERBRAMEIMA > BIRSFEZHR—ER
BRI B ER - HIRTE £ 1984 5F
NMAERBERERINERBERLEM -
MIEFE LB 1988 FRESRBEET EER
SMVEIEE BBt B1990F R RERER
REIE 2+ B1994F R REBRE
B2t WK 2003 FRBEEEH XKL
BEBL M - MIRHE L 8 1984 FAK
REBIMAREL  WH1998FREXR
FEBREEMSERE L (RE) -

BB A B KIRRIE g (APAO) AT E &
MG KRB EE B E) (APIO)E 4R © B 1
REARBEERNESE (APVRS)HNE K
B0 B BR Rl L E2BR (AON B 1= - BB AR Rl 88 &2
ZEEICOOEEEKE HEELFME
@ (ISRS) BB EZEENEK (2015F & 2016 F)
URHEREXRHEWCAIEEENKE -
R IE B B A5 7R 2004 4F 2 2009 4F B & (F
BEEFPNRBESRERE O T E
EIEAPXARERREBEBRESERK
FE13F (1998 F E20114F)  ZFK
PRNEE B A AR 2 [EH81E - B IE 1994 F &
BEFHEETHIEATRELHSF]
195 FEETFHERTHHER+RE
HEF] - 1998F [BF B F<EM] - 2000
F I R EHIB2ER10040 R R EH] -
2007F [ ANBEF 4] - 2005F 5 KH
WEREXFIBMBSERMNOANRETF
fir %8 B = #% [ Educator Award | ~ 2011 £ E
BRRESSZ5eREMN D N EKER
PR & & 22 [ Golden Apple Award | ~ 35 A fF
BEaeBENRe KRR ER [ Jose Rizal
Medal] ~ 2003 F 2 KRR E2 2 EEMER
B #8 [ De Ocampo Lecture Award | » I 7
20144 2016 F R 2018 AR AHR
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Council of Ophthalmology in 2011, “Jose Rizal Medal” (the
highest achievement and contribution award by APAO), “De
Ocampo Lecture Award” for excellence in ophthalmology
awarded by APAO in 2003, on the “Top 100 Power List” of
The Ophthalmologist in 2014, 2016 and 2018. Dr. Dennis LAM
has been appointed as a “Justice of Peace” in Hong Kong since
2004. Dr. Dennis LAM has been serving as Deputy of the National
People’s Congress of China since 2008.

Dr. Dennis LAM is the spouse of Ms. LI Xiaoting, an executive
Director and the son-in-law of Mr. LI Chunshan, an executive
Director. Dr. Dennis LAM has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years.

Ms. LI Xiaoting (ZH &2 1), aged 40, is our executive Director
since June 2017. Ms. Ll is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. LI is a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Ms. LI obtained a Bachelor of
Tourism Management from Shenyang University in China in July
2001 and a Postgraduate Diploma in Business and Administration
in Management from Massey University in New Zealand in 2004.
Ms. LI was the project coordinator and executive officer Il at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2007 and from
2007 to 2009, respectively. Ms. LI has been the general manager
of our eye centre in Hong Kong since January 2012 and the
general manager of the Shenzhen C-MER Hospital since March
2013.

Ms. LI is the spouse of Dr. Dennis LAM, an executive Director, and
the daughter of Mr. LI Chunshan, an executive Director, Ms LI has
not held any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years.

REAYSKAEZE H10058] - MJEEE £
R2004F T AT BIRKFHL] - ME
AL F 2008 FRETHEEEARKRAK
gRE -

MIEHELESATEETFTHEL LTINS
EATEEFRINEENLE - MIEHE
ERBE=ZFUEZETEFEMARLET
NEIME RIS -

ZTHELZLT 405 B2017F6 AR
WTEZ - ZRTNMARRAAETHER
ANES -FTUTAEARAFMHEZEESK
B o L TN 200147 A EEF FHER K
B E IR EE BB - 172004 F
EHTIEEAARIEEREEEMAEEX
/B o 2 2+ 72005 FF F 2007 F 2007 &
Z2009FHE D RIEAEFEERXKREIEE
WAER ZBITHET - TLETH2012F
TARHERBREALHBLE - WA
20134 3 B LR TR 7 35 BB P 4R 4812 -

FREIRBPTEEMNIEHE LORBLH
TEEFHRUEENLR - FLEIRNBE
—FYEETENEMCARETRABNE
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Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (A % B %), aged 50, is our
executive Director. Dr. LEE has been practicing for us since
January 2012 and is our Head of Hong Kong Operation. Dr. LEE
obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1993. Dr.
LEE completed the Postgraduate Diploma in Epidemiology and
Biostatistics in 2008 and was awarded a Master of Science degree
in Epidemiology and Biostatistics in 2009 all from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Dr. LEE has been a registered medical
practitioner in Hong Kong since 1994.

Dr. LEE has been a Fellow of Royal College of Surgeons of
Edinburgh since 1998, Fellow of College of Ophthalmologists of
Hong Kong since 1998, a Fellow of College of Surgeons of Hong
Kong since 1998 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine in the specialty of ophthalmology since 2002.

Dr. LEE was the President of the Hong Kong Ophthalmological
Society (“HKOS" ). Dr. LEE was the Chief Editor of the Newsletter
of the HKOS called Eye Opener. Dr. LEE was elected as the
regional secretary of Hong Kong and has represented Hong Kong
in the Asia-Pacific Academy of Ophthalmology. Dr. LEE holds
two ophthalmic patents as an inventor. He was awarded “Ten
Outstanding Young Person of Hong Kong” in 2009.

Prior to joining us, Dr. LEE was the Honorary Clinical Assistant
Professor (from 2003 to 2007) and later the Honorary Clinical
Associate Professor since March 2011 in the Department of
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences, Faculty of Medicine, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. LEE was the Assistant
Professor, the Department of Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences,
Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
the Visiting Professor, Shantou University Medical College and
the Consultant, the Department of Ophthalmology and Visual
Sciences, New Territories East Cluster, Hospital Authority.

Dr. LEE has no relationship with any Directors, senior management
or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Rules Governing the
Listing of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LEE does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Dr. LEE has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.

SHEBEE 505 ARITES -8
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Mr. LI Chunshan (Z & 1L 5% 4 ), aged 67, is our executive
Director since June 2017. Mr. Ll is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LI graduated from the
fundamental course specialty of Liaoning University for party
and governmental cadre in April 1986. In 1998, he obtained
the qualification certificate of land appraiser and first prize for
Progress in Science and Technology in the Information System
of Urban Cadastral Management from Land Administration of
Liaoning Province. In 2008, he was conferred the title of Labour
Model by People’s Government of Shenyang.

Mr. LI served in the Chinese army between 1969 and 1996. Mr.
LI was awarded Lieutenant Colonel in 1988. Since retirement
from the military service in 1993, Mr. LI had worked at different
departments and agencies of the Chinese government, including
Assistant to the Head and Deputy Head of the People’s Armed
Forces of Huanggu District, Shenyang (1993-1996), Deputy
Director of the Construction Committee of Huanggu District,
Shenyang City (1996-2002), Deputy Secretary to the Party
Committee of Lingbei Street, Huanggu District, Shenyang City
(2002-2003), Deputy Director General of Property Bureau of
Huanggu District, Shenyang City (2003-2006) and Secretary of
the Party Committee of Culture, Sports Broadcast, Television
and News Publishing Bureau of Huanggu District, Shenyang City
(2006-2011). He retired from the public services since May 2011
and joined Shenzhen C-MER Hospital in October 2012.

Mr. LI is the father of Ms. LI Xiaoting, an executive Director, and
the father-in-law of Dr. Dennis LAM, an executive Director, and
the spouse of Ms. CAO Yuerong, one of the grantees of the Pre-
IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company.

Mr. LI has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam (2|25 & 4 ), aged 58, is our
independent non-executive Director since December 2017. Dr.
LAU is the chairperson of the nomination committee and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Dr. LAU
obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1984. Dr. LAU received his
Membership of Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom
in 1987. Dr. LAU obtained the Doctor of Medicine degree from
the University of Hong Kong in 1992. Dr. LAU has been a Fellow
of Hong Kong College of Physicians since 1992, specialist of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine.

Dr. LAU was Chairman and CEO of Ribapharm. Prior to
Ribapharm, Dr. LAU served as the senior vice president of
Research and Development for ICN Pharmaceuticals Inc. Prior, Dr.
LAU served as the Senior Director of Antiviral Therapy at Schering-
Plough Research Institute. Dr. LAU has contributed more than 250
scientific publications in peer reviewed scientific journals and has
edited two books. Dr. LAU was a former Managing Director at
Roth Capital Partners LLC.

Dr. LAU is currently serving on the board of directors of Porton
Fine Chemicals (listed on Stock Shenzhen Exchange: 300363)
and a number of private companies including Avalon Biomedical
(Management) Limited (and its affiliated companies) and Aiviva
Corporation. Dr. LAU is also an honorary professor/adjunct
professor of the University of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a member of the Advisory Board of the
School of Biomedical Sciences of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.

Dr. LAU has served as the Chairman of the board of directors
and CEO of Athenex. Athenex has been listed on The NASDAQ
National Market since June 2017 (ATNX).

Dr. LAU has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LAU does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LAU has not held any directorship in
other publicly listed companies in the last three years.
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Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS OSt/ JP (ZBI#RE& 4 ), aged 64, is
our independent non-executive Director since December 2017. Dr.
Ll is a member of the audit committee of the Company. Dr Ll is a
specialist in Family Medicine in private practice in Hong Kong. Dr.
LI is the President of the World Organisation of Family Physicians
(WONCA), the Past President of the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine and the Chairman of the Governing Board of Hong Kong
Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute. Dr. LI
is also the Censor of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians.
Dr LI graduated with his first Bachelor of Arts degree from Cornell
University, USA, in 1975 followed by his study of medicine and
obtained the Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from
The University of Hong Kong in 1980. Dr. Ll is a Fellow of The
Hong Kong College of General Practitioners, Fellow of the Hong
Kong Academy of Medicine, Honorary Fellow of the College of
Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong, Honorary Fellow of the Royal
Australian College of General Practitioners, Honorary Fellow of
the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, Fellow of the Faculty
of Public Health of the Royal College of Physicians of the United
Kingdom, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Family Physicians of
Malaysia, Registered Mainland China Medical Practitioner, Fellow
of the American College of Physicians, Honorary Fellow of the
Royal College of Physicians of Thailand, Fellow of the Academy
of Medicine, Singapore, Honorary Fellow of the Royal College
of Physicians of Ireland, Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of
General Practitioners.

Dr. LI served as Member of Council of Cornell University. Dr. Ll is
Clinical Professor (Honorary) in Family Medicine in the Jockey Club
School of Public Health and Primary Care of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong; Honorary Professor in the Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of the University of Hong Kong; Advisor Professor of
Shanghai Medical College, Fudan University, China; Vice Chairman
of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association; Special Advisor
of the Physicians’ Education and Training in General Practice
Committee of the Chinese Medical Physician Association.

Dr LI is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
Association. Dr. LI is the Director of Bauhinia Foundation Research
Centre and also the Chairman of the board of directors of the
Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited. Dr. Ll is
the Honorary Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. Dr. LI is
the Adjunct Associate Professor of the Faculty of Health Science
of Macau University of Science and Technology. Dr. LI is the
Honorary Adviser of the Award Scheme of The Hong Kong
Award for Young People. Dr. LI is also a member of the Steering
Committee on Primary Healthcare Development of Food and
Health Bureau and member of the Chief Executive’s Council of
Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development of the Hong
Kong Government.
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Dr. LI has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company listed on
Stock Exchange with the stock code: 00722, since 6 November
2015. Save as disclosed above, Dr. LI is not and has not been a
director of any other listed company in Hong Kong and overseas
in the past three years.

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung (5 BB # % %), aged 77, is our
independent non-executive Director since December 2017. Mr.
MA is the chairperson of the audit committee and a member of
the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. MA is a graduate of Economics of The London School of
Economics and Political Science (The University of London). Mr.
MA is the Fellow Member of each of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a full member of The
Hong Kong Management Association.

Mr. MA has over 40 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and finance. Mr. MA is a director of Mayee Management Limited
and director of The People’s Insurance Company of China (Hong
Kong), Limited and Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited. He
is the founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly
known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Ltd).

Mr. MA is also an independent non-executive director of Asia
Financial Holdings Ltd. (Stock code: 00662), C.P. Pokphand
Co. Ltd. (Stock code: 00043), China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited (Stock code: 00836), Chong Hing Bank Limited
(Stock code: 01111) and Asiaray Media Group Limited (Stock
code: 01993), all of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. MA resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Southwest Securities International Securities
Limited (formerly known as Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited)
(Stock code: 00812) on 27 January 2015.

Mr. MA has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. MA does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. MA has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. CHAN Chi Leong (RE = %&£ %), aged 71, is our
independent non-executive Director since December 2017. Mr.
Chan is the chairperson of the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. CHAN obtained a Bachelor in Economics from the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom in 1971 and a MBA degree from the
City University of London in 1973. Mr. CHAN is the Founder and
Chairman of the Group of companies of Primasia (the “Primasia
Group”), which is in the business of investment, research and
consultancy, securities brokerage and so on. Mr. CHAN has
been the Chairman of Asian Securities Analysts Federation in
1986-1988. Mr. CHAN is also the Founder of Taiwan Sotheby’s
International Realty Company Limited. Mr. CHAN Chi Leong is a
licensed person under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO") permitted to engaged in type 1 (dealing in securities), type
4 (advising on securities), type 5 (advising on futures contracts)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities (as defined in
the SFO).

Prior to founding the Primasia Group, Mr. CHAN worked in
Bankers Trust from 1988-1990, and he served as General
Manager of Kwang Hua Securities Investment Trust in Taipei from
1986-1987, Executive Director in charge of sales and trading
of Hoare Govett Asia Limited from 1980-1987 and Manager of
Investment Banking Department of Deutsche Bank, Hong Kong
Branch in 1978-1980.

Mr. CHAN has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHAN does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHAN has not held any directorship
in other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang (R Z % Z L), aged 70, is our
independent non-executive Director since December 2017. Ms.
BENTLEY is a member of the audit committee of the Company. Ms
Annie Liang BENTLEY is the founder of Bentley Communications
and a pioneer of the branding, corporate and marketing
communications profession in Hong Kong.

Ms. BENTLEY holds a bachelor of arts degree in English Literature
and Chinese Translation (1971) from the University of Hong
Kong, an advanced certificate in Education from the University
of Oxford (1976) and a master’s degree in Buddhist Studies from
the University of Hong Kong (2010). Ms. BENTLEY was made an
Honorary Fellow of the University of Hong Kong in 2013.

Ms. BENTLEY began her career in educational publishing for
Oxford University Press working on their ESL books and the Oxford
English Chinese dictionary.

In 1981, she joined the public relations industry working for a
financial services banking and securities group in Hong Kong.
In 1987, she established her consultancy in partnership with
Omnicom, one of the world’s largest public relations and
advertising conglomerate, and grew Bentley Communications
to be one of Hong Kong’s reputable communications agencies
with coverage in Singapore, Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou by
2007.

Ms. BENTLEY is Chairman of Robert Black College HKU. She is
a trustee of the China Oxford Scholarship Fund, board member
of Action for Epilepsy, Heifer International (Hong Kong) and
committee member of the Boys and Girls Clubs Association of
Hong Kong.

Ms. BENTLEY has been a member of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Prince of Wales Hospital, and has served on the
Executive Committee of Project Vision since the inception of the
charity in 2006.

Ms. BENTLEY has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. BENTLEY does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. BENTLEY has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Wa Ping (PR # ¥ %&£ %), aged 34, is our Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary. Mr. CHAN joined
us in April 2017 and is responsible for overseeing the finance,
compliance, merger and acquisition, and investor relations of the
Group. Mr. CHAN graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor in Business Administration in 2006 and has
over 10 years of financial and accounting related experience.

Mr. CHAN is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining us, Mr. CHAN worked for
PricewaterhouseCoopers and was involved in a number of
audit and assurance, capital market transactions and advisory
projects advising corporate clients including listed companies and
conglomerates worldwide.

Ms. SIU Man Yi (B8 %2 Z L), aged 37, is our Centre
Manager in Hong Kong. Ms. SIU joined us in January 2012 and
is responsible for the overall management of clinic services and
daily operations of our eye centre and satellite clinics in Hong
Kong. Ms. SIU also designs and implements standard operating
procedures to maintain a consistent and efficient work flow in the
eye centres and all satellite clinics. Ms. SIU graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Nursing in 2006 and a
Master of Social Sciences in Behavioural Health in 2010.

Ms. SIU is a registered nurse since 2006. Before joining us, Ms.
SIU worked for Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital during
the period between July 2006 and September 2007, the Chinese
University of Hong Kong during the period between September
2007 and January 2008, St Paul’s Eye Centre during the period
between January 2008 to September 2010, and Asia Medical
Specialists Limited in the period between November 2010 and
May 2011.

Each of the senior management members is not or has not been a
director of any other listed company in Hong Kong and overseas
in the past three years.
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Our Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of our Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of our Company is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of ophthalmic
services, sale of vision aid and pharmaceutical products in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

An analysis of our Group’s performance for the year by
geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on page 80 of
this report.

The Board has recommended to pay to the shareholders of
the Company a final dividend of HK2 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Subject to the approval of the
proposed final dividend by the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Tuesday,
25 June 2019 (the “AGM"), the final dividend is expected to be
paid on or about Monday, 15 July 2019.

ADOPTION OF DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the
"Dividend Policy”). The Company is endeavour to maintain
sufficient operating capital to develop and operate the Group’s
business, and to provide stable and sustainable returns to its
shareholders.

In deciding whether to recommend dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board will consider the following factors:

o the Group’s financial results and general financial condition;

o liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group;
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o the Group’s current and future operations;

o the Group's business development strategies and future
expansion plans;

° the general market conditions;

o any relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company; and

o any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The Board will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and
reserve the discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy will not in any
way constitute a legally binding commitment of the Group in
relation to its future dividends and/or will not in any way render
the Company obligated to declare dividends at any time or from
time to time.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of our Company on 25 June 2019 are entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM. The register of members of our Company will be
closed from Thursday, 20 June 2019 to Tuesday, 25 June 2019,
both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 19 June 2019.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement for the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 2 July 2019 to Thursday, 4 July 2019, both
days inclusive. To qualify for the final dividend, shareholders
should ensure that all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 28
June 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of our Group during the year and a
discussion on our Group’s future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 21 of this
report respectively.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarized below:

Reputation risk

Our business depends significantly on the soundness of our
reputation. Failure to develop, maintain and enhance our
reputation, or any negative publicity or allegations in the media
against us, may adversely affect the level of market recognition
of, and trust in, our services, and failure to properly manage our
ophthalmologists’, physicians’ or other medical professionals’
clinical activities may expose us to medical disputes, which could
result in a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Our reputation and business
may be harmed accordingly.

Customer risk

As we provide mid- to high-end medical services, our business,
financial condition and results of operations are subject to changes
in patient preference, consumption capacity, consumer confidence
index and general economic conditions in our market.
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Talent risk

If we are unable to attract, train and retain a sufficient number
of qualified ophthalmologists, physicians, management staff and
other hospital personnel, our hospital/clinic operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

Key Relationship

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
partners are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with
our employees, enhancing cooperation with our partners and
providing high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure
the Group’s sustainable development.

Staff

Our staff is regarded as the most important resource of the
Group. The Group has been endeavoring to provide our staff
with a competitive compensation packages, attractive promotion
opportunities, comprehensive training courses and a professional
working environment. In order to assist us in attracting, retaining
and motivating our key employees, the Group has adopted share
option schemes, pursuant to which share options will be granted
to eligible employees. The Group provides ongoing training to our
employees.

Customers

We uphold the principle of providing high-quality medical services
throughout our operation, which we believe is vital to achieving
customer satisfaction and maintaining our reputation.

Suppliers

We firmly believe that our suppliers are equally important in
providing high-quality medical services. When selecting suppliers,
we consider, among other things, their product offerings, pricing,
reputation, service or product quality and delivery schedule. We
conduct regular review of our suppliers and will remove any
suppliers who do not meet our supply standards or requirements
from our list of approved suppliers. We usually have more than
one supplier for each kind of our supply need to ensure we
maintain sufficient inventory levels and bargaining power to deal
with price fluctuations. We do not rely on any single supplier
for any of our major pharmaceuticals, medical consumables or
medical devices. We have stable business relationships with our
suppliers in 2018.

.
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Environmental Policies

We are subject to various Hong Kong and PRC laws, rules and
regulations with regard to environmental matters, including clinic/
hospital sanitation, disease control, disposal of medical waste, and
discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive substances.
We have established systems and procedures in place concerning
environmental protection, such as requiring all our hospitals to
engage qualified service providers to dispose of medical waste
and radioactive substances. In 2018, our businesses were in
compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations with regard
to environmental protection in all material aspects.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while the Company is
a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Our
establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and the
Cayman Islands. In 2018, our businesses were in compliance with
all the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC, and
the Cayman Islands in all material aspects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of our Group for the past five years ended 31 December 2018 are
set on page 192 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of our Company are
set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of our Group and
our Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, note 22 and note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2018, the reserves of our Company available
for distribution to the shareholders of our Company amounted to
approximately HK$696.9 million (2017: HK$161.3 million).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND POST-IPO
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Our Company approved and adopted the a share option scheme
(the "Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions
of the shareholders passed on 28 June 2017. As of 31 December
2018, 5,561,664 share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme has been exercised pursuant to the terms of grant
of the options.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives and rewards to our Directors, employees,
ophthalmologists/physicians, advisers, consultants and business
partners of our Group for their contribution, and to align the
corporate objectives and interests between us and our grantees of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Grantees”). The principal
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were approved and
adopted pursuant to the resolutions passed by our shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of our Company held on 28
June 2017. On the same date, our Company has adopted another
share option scheme (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). As of
the date of this report, there is no option granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

As of 31 December 2018, options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 40,848,003 Shares (representing approximately 3.95% of the
issued share capital of our Company as of 31 December 2018 and
date of this report) have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme to the Grantees. The Grantees comprise three
Connected Grantees, seven Doctor Grantees, five Consultant
Grantees, two members of our senior management team, our
employees in Hong Kong and our physicians and employees in the
PRC. All the options were granted on or before the Listing Date
and no further options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme after the Listing Date.
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The options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to
the Grantees will be vested on different dates.

The terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are the same as
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme except that:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the total number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 46,765,000 Shares, representing 4.68%
of the enlarged issued share capital of our Company
immediately following completion of the Global Offering
(without taking into account any Share which may be issued
upon any exercise of the Over-allotment Option and the
options which have been or may be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme);

save for the options which have been granted on 140
Grantees, no further options will be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing Date;

subject to any restriction contained in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, an option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
terms of grant thereof. All the Pre-IPO Share Options that
are not exercised by them within the exercise period shall
lapse and be deemed as cancelled and void;

the exercise prices for each Share under the Pre-IPO Share
Options are in the range between HK$0.10 and HK$1.0;

In terms of rights on death or ceasing employment:

(@a) If the Grantee (being an individual) dies before
exercising the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”)
in full, all unvested Pre-IPO Share Options shall vest
on the date of his death, and the legal personal
representative(s) of such Grantee may exercise all Pre-
IPO Share Options granted to the deceased within
twelve (12) months thereafter;
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(ii)

(iii)
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(bb) If the Grantee is an employee, director, consultant

(co)

or adviser of our Group at the time of the grant
of the relevant Pre-IPO Share Options and his or
her employment or service to our Company is
terminated on the ground of disability resulting
from an occupational accident, all unvested Pre-IPO
Share Options shall vest on the termination date of
the employment or engagement of such Grantee.
The Grantee may exercise all Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him or her within twelve (12) months
thereafter; or

If the Grantee is on leave without pay accumulated
for more than one hundred and eighty-three (183)
days in any calendar year after the Listing Date, the
vesting periods for all unvested Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him or her shall be respectively extended
for twelve (12) months. If any such extension will
result in the vesting period of any unvested options
to cross beyond the date of the 3rd anniversary of 1
April 2017, 1 September 2017, 1 November 2017, 1
December 2017, 1 January 2018 or 1 June 2018 (as
the case maybe), such extension shall be deemed to
be made up to the business day immediately prior
to the date of the 3rd anniversary of 1 April 2017,
1 September 2017, 1 November 2017, 1 December
2017, 1 January 2018 or 1 June 2018 (as the case
maybe).
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The following table sets forth a summary of the key terms and
conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Options:

Major terms
IZR

Number of grantees

ARAHE

Pre-IPO Share Options granted (in
terms of number of our Shares and
the shareholding percentages)
BRENEROHBENRRE
(RRABHERBRASLAE)

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior
management team
—EHTES tEBEARA
REEHXNEERER
—-4EREREHNE
14 Grantees (including Dr. Vincent LEE
and Mr. CHAN Wa Ping, a member
of our senior management team,
and seven Doctor Grantees). Further
information on the Pre-IPO Share
Options is set forth in the paragraphs
under "D. Share Option Schemes -
1 Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus
MERRA (REZHRBEREN
Ah-2ERERENRERET R
EREABEREA)  ERARE
EHBRENE-SENERDRE
Wm0 BlEE -1 EARY
ERBREE R

An aggregate of 3.13% of the number
of our Shares in issue immedately
following completion of the Global
Offering, the Capitalisation lssue and
the ful exercise of the Over-allotment
Option, representing 32,276,000
Shares.
AREZRANFERAALER
rRUERERREERRGRE
EFREARAHEH3.13% H
32,276,000 R «

Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
RERHEER
-#EREEERAE

28 Grantees (including Ms. SIU Man Yi,
amember of our senior management
team). Further information on the
Pre-IPO Share Options granted to the
member of our senior management
team is set forth in the paragraphs
under “D. Share Option Schemes -
1 Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus
BEERA(BERALP LB
EREHR ARG NL)  BER
FEMEREERURENERLR
FENBRENE-SERERAR
SEMBOID.ERERH-1ERR
FEMERETE )R-

An aggregate of 0.45% of the number
of our Shares in issue immediately
following completion of the Global
Offering, the Capitalisation ssue and
the ful exercise of the Over-allotment
Option, representing 4,666,000 Shares.
AREZRANFERAALER
rRUERERRERRRGRE
ZHEETRHEEDH0L% B
4,666,000/ %13 °

TREIERAFRAE
KEMGFHOBR

An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
-RYTES - AHEARAR
RYENBERES

93 Grantees (including Mr. LI Chunshan,

an executive Director and Ms. CAO
Yuerong, a Connected Grantee and
the spouse of Mr. LI Chunshan and the
mother of Ms. LI). Further information
on the Pre-PO Share Options granted
to our executive Director is set forth

in the paragraphs under "D. Share
Option Schemes - 1 Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus.

BEARA (BERTESZALL
ERFBLEENERRERLHE
REARLT(BEARA) 6
RTRMBEENERAREEN
BRENE-SERERNBRERN
SO0 BRE -1 ERREER
B -&-

An aggregate of 0.71% of the

total number of our Shares in issue
immediately following completion of
the Global Offering, the Capitalisation
Issue and the full exercise of the
Over-allotment Option, representing
7,323,000 Shares.
AREZRANIERAALER
n&lﬁi@@k&%%%ﬂﬁﬁ
FACEARHAEDH0TI% 5
733,000 %15 -
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ERERENETEK

Five Consultant Grantees

FABEARA

Five Consultant Grantees. Further

information on the Pre-IPO Share
Options is set forth in the paragraphs
under “D. Share Option Schemes -

1 Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
REEMARA - BEERAREE
HBREDE-SERERARER
Hism(D. BRE: 8 -1 ERAFE
EHBREE] R

An aggregate of 0.24% of the

total number of our Shares in issue
immediately following completion of
the Global Offering, the Capitalisation
Issue and the full exercise of the
Over-allotment Option, representing
2,500,000 Shares,
AREERANIERAALER
RRUERERRERRRRE
HZFREARALHNH024% - D
2,500,000 13 »



Major terms
IERR

Exercise period

s

Exercise percentages
fEast

Exercise price

i@k

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior
management team
-BUTES tRBEARA
RABHENEERER
—4ERERERAE
36-month period commencing from the
third anniversary of the latter of (3) the
expiry of the First Six-Month Period and
(b) the first anniversary of 1 April 2017
or 1 December 2017. All unexercised
Pre-IPO Share Options will lapse.
B ENEASEERR b 2017%
AR1BH0TENATRRE-F
ER(ABBERE) EHN=FER
Rt 368 A48 - A RETRY
ERRREENBEREREY -

ord;

36-month period commencing from
the latter of (@) the expiry of the First
Six-Month Period and (b) the first
anniversary of 1 January 2018. Al
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options will
lapse.
B ENEASEERR b 2018%
IATRRE- S8R (B ERE)
Rt 368 A48 - A RETRY
BRLHEENRRERRN

In three equal tranches for each of the
12-month period commencing from the
date of commencement of the exercise
period for a period of 36-month.
A=BEENR AARBEASR
RETERRRERBE 2BARG
fEe

o

One tranche.

,gﬁo

HK$0.1 for each Share to be allotted
and issued.

ERREERERR0ET

Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REBNERR
—%ERERERAE

36-month period commencing from the
third anniversary of 1 April 2017. Al
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options will

[apse.
BTFIRIBRA=FERF
#36 EAEHE Pﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬁ’lém

NRRENRRERAY

One tranche.

—#

HK$ 1.0 for each Share to be allotted
and issued.

ERBEEREARM 10T

Report of the Directors

An executive Director,
a Connected Grantee and

our physicians and employees
in the PRC
-2HTES - FBEARAR
RPENEERES

36-month period commencing from the

third anniversary of 1 April 2017 or 1
September 2017. All unexercised Pre-
PO Share Options will lapse.
201754 A1E201 7¢9H1a
ER=FE0F E’BMIHE@
ﬁﬂ%iﬁ’]ﬁ RAREER E%H%
B

ord;

36-month period commencing from
the third anniversary of 1 April 2017 for
60.0%.
BUITEARIBRR=FERER
#3618 AR : 60.0% o

60-month period commencing from
the fifth anniversary of 1 April 2017 for
40.0%.
B7E4RIBERIFERER
#6018 A 5 : 40.0% °

All unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options
will lapse.
FRREARHERRALENER
BEXN-

One tranche.

—#

VE]

Two tranches.

HK$ 1.0 for each Share to be allotted
and issued.

ERBEEREARM 10T

_|_
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Five Consultant Grantees

IARAARA

36-month period commencing from the
third anniversary of the latter of (3) the
expiry of the First Six-Month Period and
(b) the first anniversary of 1 November
2017, 1 January 2018 or 1 June 2018.
BEENERERERRb) 2017F
1MATE 201851 A1 HH20185F
6R1BER-EE8B(aHEAL)
R 2 BRBA361E A B

In three equal tranches for each of the
12-month period commencing from the
date of commencement of the exercise
period for a period of 36 months.
HZHEEARE 2R EARE
mEFERER SR 12EBART
fEe

HK$0.1 for each Share to be allotted
and issued.

ERREZREARREL
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Major terms
IERR

Performance target

REER

Cessation of cooperation or
employment

REAfFIER

Lock-up period following the
exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options
ERARBEABRETREAN
REH

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior

management team
—ZUNES LEBLEREA
REEAXNEERLR
—4ERERERAE

No performance target for the
physicians practising in the PRC and
the member of our senior management
team.
RREREHE
SERBER-

EESERERNK

The exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options by our Hong Kong
Ophthalmologists is subject to agreed
performance target in terms of revenue
generated in each of the 12-month
period. If the performance target
cannot be satisfied, the Pre- IPO Share
Options exercisable during the relevant
12-month period would be exercisable
on a pro-rata basis with the target
amount of revenue.
BEBHBEARENORYENE
RERRRBR NERBRAELL
NIHEREERAR - WEEER
RER BB Iﬁ@ 57 P17
HERAREENBRESRERR
Ve BRI AR

Pro-rata in terms of revenue generated
in each of the 12-month period with
the target amount of revenue for those
grantees subject to performance target.
Pro-rata on the number of months of
employment in each of the 12-month
period for those grantees not subject to
the performance target.
HRZEERARNARAME - &
FRAGKECENENEASRE

ERASBUH - HARFEERR
BaERATE &2 12EABEE
ERHELE -

Not applicable.
TR
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Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REBNERR
—%ERERERAE
No performance target.
EXEAR.

No pro rata adjustment and the
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options will
[apse upon cessation of employment for
whatever reasons.
AREARRAILERE  HERY
IRERRE RN ERAREER
BREREA -

Not applicable.
R -

An executive Director,
a Connected Grantee and

our physicians and employees
in the PRC
-2HTES - FBEARAR
RPENEERES
The exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options by 5 physicians in the PRC is

subject to the agreed performance
targets in terms of revenue generated
during the first 36-month and then
24-month period immediately after 1
April 2017. If the performance target
cannot be satisfied, the Pre-IPO Share
Options exercisable during the relevant
12-month period would be exercisable
0n a pro-fata basis with reference to
the target amount of revenue.
RPENTARENRERRALE
HEREERZETE4A1 B
BoEARARERLERSRN
EEWAW%E%@E%&@G%%

ﬁiﬁﬁ'#ﬁ VEAHRE
%ﬁiﬁ%h“ AEMRERERS
ZERRESBRLAIAR

No pro rata adjustment and the
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options will
[apse upon cessation of employment for
whatever reasons.
SREARRALERE  HERY
fIRERAETROERAFEER
BRERER -

Not applicable.
TR -

FHBNEREZREBRLF

Five Consultant Grantees

IARAARA

No performance target.
EXEER-

The exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options is subject to the completion of
services for a period of 12 months.
IRERARE 'ﬁ%%%@%%&
DNAREERBERR

Pro-rata on the number of months of
service engagement in the 36-month
contract period commencing from 1
Novernber in each year. Cessation of
engagement before November wil
continue to be subject to the grant

of the Pre-IPO Share Options in the
forthcoming November.
REENA1ERBEALNERE
BRBEARELD W1 AZHE

IHER: T%Eiﬁﬁ HRen 1 A
BRERDREENRRENR -

Not applicable.

TR
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Details of the shares outstanding on which options are granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to Directors and senior
management of our Group as of 31 December 2018 under the

scheme are as follows: N
Number of options
BREHE
Heldat  Granted  Expired  Exercised Lapsed Heldat  Exercise
1 January during during during during 31 December price Grant Exercisable Exercisable
2018  theyear  theyear  theyear theyear 2018 HKS date from il
0185 20185
1818 RER RER  RFR NANA  FE BUT i &3
fiks® i i X% fik® RiLEH BEk NTHE
Connected Grantees ~ BEARA
Ms. CAO Yuerong ERRRT 259,000 - - - - 259000 10 1Apil2017 TAprl 2020 31 March 2027
(Finance Manager) (Brsiee) 7E4F1E 00%4F18 2007838318
Dr. Vincent LEE ThEEE 12,953,000 - - - - 12,953,000 01 1A 2017 16Juy2018 31 March 2023
(Brecuive Director (#1rE3) WIE4FIB 018F7A168  0353A318
Mr. Ll Chunshan ZEl%E 777,000 - - - - 777,000 10 1Apil2017 TApri 2020 31 March 2027
(Bxecutive Director (#1ES) WIELFIE N0FLAIR 20071%3R31A
Senior Management ~ SREEE
Mr. CHAN Wa Ping RETEE 933,000 - - (311,000 - 622,000 0.1 1 April 2017 16July2018 31 March 2023
(Chief financial officer (BB 4BER 7E4F18 018574168 203534318
and company secretan)  AFHE)
M. SIU Man Yi LG 432,000 - - - - 8000 10 1Apil2017 TAprl 2020 31 March 2027
(Centre manager) (i) NTE4AIR WNFLATR 2007438318
Others a2t
Doctor Grantees (excuding  ZARRA (FRIE 17824000 - - (5,250,664) - 1257333 01 3Api2017 16JUy2018 31 March 2023
Dr. Vincent Lee) FhRBY) N17F4A38 018FTA16E  03F3A318
Doctor Grantee BEREA 200000 - - - (1933) 70867 0.1 1September 2017 1January 2019 31 Decernber 2021
1759818 0191718 20215124318
Consultant Grantegs BREEEA 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 0.1 1September 2017 1 November 2018 31 October 2023
01759F18 01851118 203510A318
Consutant Grantee BRAZA 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.1 1Septernber 2017 1 January 2019 31 December 2023
1759418 019F1718 2035124318
Consultant Grantee BREEA 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.1 1 September 2017 Tune2019 30 May 2024
NITEIAIE 09F6ATE  204%5A308
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Number of options
BREYE
Heldat  Granted  Expired  Exercised Lapsed Heldat  Exercise
1 January during during during during 31 December price Grant Exercisable Exercisable

2018  theyear  theyear  theyear theyear 2018 HKS date from il
Ra018 5 R20185F

1B1B REh RER  REA 12A3A g BAUT %

fiE Ri : ffE X4 FkA A RiHAH BEak DAY -]

Employees [E8 9,580,000 - - - (148000) 9,432,000 10 1 April 2017 1 Aprl2020 31 March 2023
VITE4A1E 0NF4R18 ABE3A31A
Employees (8 742,000 - - - - 74,000 10 1 April 2017 1 April 2024 31 March 2027
754818 0UF4A18 2007534318
Employee 5 366,000 - - - - 366,000 0.1 160ctober 2017 1 December 2018 30 November 2023
WITE0A168 201812818 035118308
Employee [EE 121,000 - - - - 121,000 1.0 16 October 2017 1 December 2018 30 November 2023
WITEIAE 2018E12A18 0BE114308
Total 2t 46,687,000 - - (BS61E6A  (277333) 40848003

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately R E BB IR ZE T B 5 A 89 I 19 o
before the date on or which the options were exercised was BT B AE5.448 7T -
HK$5.44.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME BXLARBELRBRESTE

The shareholders of our Company approved and adopted a share ARAFEER2017F12 A 138 # & KK
option scheme on 13 December 2017 (the “Post-IPO Share Option MEREAE (XA AHABEERBRE
Scheme”) to enable our Company to grant options to eligible HE]) A S AR MAEEKRLQREEEH A
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to EEEHNEBRESERHEREESE
our Group. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme took effect on 15 B METF BN AHESEBRETER
January 2018 (the listing date of our Company), and no option 2018F 1 A 158 (AAR LW B £ %%
has been granted up to the date of this report. HERRE BB SR DA ERE -
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

Who may participate

Our Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the
terms set forth in the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to:

(i) any executive director of, manager of, or other
employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of our
Group (the "Executive”), any full-time or part-time
employee, or a person for the time being seconded
to work full-time or part-time for any member of our
Group (the “Employee”);

(i) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member
of our Group;

(i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of our
Group;

(iv) a supplier of goods or services to any member of our
Group;

(v)  a customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group;

(vi) a person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of our Group; and

(vii) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (i) to (iii) above.

(the persons referred above are the “Eligible Persons”)

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme and any options granted under any
other share option scheme must not in aggregate exceed
100,000,000 Shares (being 10% of the Shares in issue as
of the Listing Date) unless our Company obtains a fresh
approval.

Report of the Directors
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2 A REA B R R RERRHE
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TEF KB gEETR'
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(i) AKEETAKEARMNEFL
REEE (BRBILIFNTE
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i) A& B AR B A RN EER
R AR

vy MASBEEAKE A ARHRES
an S AR5 ) (LB 7

) AEETARBRANES -
B EBRA BB EET
W RO REHIRE

(vi) MASEEFKERARREHREK
At BT B SEM SR SIE
32 - - BEKEAMRS
MEAER : &

(vii) = 32() 2 (i) BR P 3 AR AT A £ 89
BEBA o

(LALERIEERAL]

(b) BAURRENERENGSRD
#E

EITEREE X AFREEEBIRER
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =2 — \E & ‘ 45 "



_|_

Report of the Directors

i

(c)

(d)

(e)

SHRE

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

Unless approved by the shareholders of our Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted to each Eligible Person under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of our
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not at the time of
grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Person concerned for a period of
28 days from the offer date provided that no such grant of
an option may be accepted after the expiry of the effective
period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An option
shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate
offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of our Company of HK$1.0 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by our Company on or
before the date upon which an offer of an option must be
accepted by the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not
later than 30 days after the offer date. Such remittance shall
in no circumstances be refundable.

Exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular
option shall be such price as our Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the exercise price shall not be
less than whichever is the highest of: (i) the nominal value of
a share; (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and
(iii) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business
days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding
the date of grant.

(c)

(d)

(e)
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(f) Time for exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by our Board at the offer date when
making an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to
exceed the period of 10 years from the offer date of such
option.

(g) Duration of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date,
after which period no further options will be granted but the
provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect
to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto which
are at that time or become thereafter capable of exercise
under the rules of the Post- IPO Share Option Scheme, or
otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Our Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2018 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, our five largest clients
accounted for 1.8% of our total revenue, of which 1.0% of our
total revenue was generated from our largest client, which was an
insurance company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, our five largest
suppliers accounted for 44.8% of our total purchases. These five
largest suppliers include suppliers of pharmaceuticals, medical
consumables and intraocular lenses. For the same period, our
largest supplier accounted for 12.1% of our total purchases.

None of our Directors or any of their respective close associates
or any shareholder which to the best knowledge of our Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of our Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS

Our Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP (#RIE %) 88
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. LI Xiaoting (ZH 124 1)

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Z={G 58 88 A4 )

Mr. LI Chunshan (&L % 4£)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam (2|23 28 &)

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS JP (7 Bl 1 &2
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung (& BR#E 5L 4)
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong (FRE 52 % 4)

Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang (2% 8%z +)

At the AGM, Dr LAM Shun Chiu Dennis, Ms LI Xiaoting and Mr
LI Chunshan will retire as Directors in accordance with Article
84 of the Articles of Association of our Company (“Articles
of Association”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of our Directors, the senior management and
company secretary of our Group are set out on pages 22 to 31 of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company on 13 December 2017 and our Company
has issued letters of appointment to each of the independent
non-executive Directors. The principal particulars of these service
contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for a term of 3 years
commencing from 13 December 2017 and (b) are subject to
termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term
of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
Listing Rules.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by our Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Our Group remunerates its employees, including our Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
Our employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to our Group’s profitability, our Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to our Group. Our Company has adopted share
option scheme as an incentive to our Directors and eligible
employees.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of our Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of our Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below and the related party transactions
as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director and/or any of his/her connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of our
Group to which our Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at anytime during the year.
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SHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Maida Medical Software Development (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (#3= 28 & &A% ORI B R 2 A1) (“Shenzhen
Maida”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of D&S Limited which
is owned as to 59.2% by Dr. Dennis LAM, and it is therefore
a connected person of our Company. Shenzhen Maida is
therefore a connected person of our Company pursuant to
Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Shenzhen C-MER Hospital entered into a lease agreement
with Shenzhen Maida dated 25 May 2017 (the “Lease
Agreement”) in relation to the lease to Shenzhen C-MER
Hospital of a property located at No. 101 Sheng Tang
Building, Tairanjiu Lu, Futian, Shenzhen, the PRC (the
“Shenzhen Property”), which constitutes continuing
connected transactions for our Company.

The Lease Agreement was for a term from 1 June 2017
to 31 May 2020. The Shenzhen Property is currently used
by Shenzhen C-MER Hospital as the premises for our eye
hospital in Shenzhen.

The rental expense payable under the Lease Agreement is
determined with reference to (1) the historical amounts of
rental during the three years ended 31 December 2016 and
(2) the market rates of the premises of similar condition and
size. Shenzhen C-MER Hospital has the option to renew
the Lease Agreement upon its expiry with reference to the
then prevailing market rates subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules for a term not exceeding three years from
the expiry date of any preceding lease term until Shenzhen
C-MER Hospital decides not to exercise the renewal option.

The amount of annual rental under the Lease Agreement
is determined on an arm’s length basis and upon normal
commercial terms. Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, an independent valuer of our property interests, has
confirmed that the amount of rental payable by us for the
Shenzhen Property under the Lease Agreement is fair and
reasonable and comparable to the prevailing market rates.
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The following table sets forth the annual caps for the rental
expense payable by us in respect of the Shenzhen Property
for the three years ending 31 December 2019:

2019 £
HK$°000
FE T
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EEEHE

TR#FHHNEZE2019F12 8318 1=
BEFERMULRIDEERGHESE
FAEE LR :

Year ended/ending 31 December
BE12A31BLFE
2019 2018
2018
HK$°000
TET

2017
2017 &
HK$°000
FETT

Annual rental FHE 9,885 9,885 9,885
The transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement THEWHZRIEBE TRETI S MIEKEE
also constitute related party transaction of our Company WS ERIE T ARG R

under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The actual rental expense payable by us in respect of the
Shenzhen Property for the year ended 31 December 2018
was HK$9.3 million.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
non-exempt continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of our Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to our Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

() according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of our Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 "Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions.
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(ii)

SHRE

As announced on 28 August 2018, the Group entered into
an agreement to acquire 80% equity interest of Kunming
Eye Hospital. Following completion of the acquisition of the
Kunming Eye Hospital (23R EIE ), the vendors of the
Kunming Eye Hospital shall own 20% of the Kunming Eye
Hospital and be substantial shareholders (as such term is
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Kunming Eye Hospital
(which will be a 80%-owned subsidiary of the Company).
As such, the vendors shall be treated as connected persons
at the subsidiary level of the Company and the transaction
contemplated under the lease agreement to be entered
into between the Kunming Eye Hospital and the Landlords
(as defined below) in relation to the hospital premises (the
“Hospital Premises”), which is located at 44 Yunrui West
Road, Wuhua District, Kunming, currently used by the
Kunming Eye Hospital and will be disposed to the vendors
pursuant to the acquisition agreement before completion
(as disclosed below), shall constitute a continuing connected
transaction with connected persons at the subsidiary level
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one of the conditions precedent to completion of the
acquisition of Kunming Eye Hospital, the Kunming Eye
Hospital will dispose of the Hospital Premises to the Landlord
and that the Landlord will lease the Hospital Premises back
to the Kunming Eye Hospital. The Board considers that the
operation of the Kunming Eye Hospital will not require the
ownership of the Hospital Premises so long as the Kunming
Eye Hospital has the right to continue to use the Hospital
Premises upon normal commercial terms. In this connection,
a lease agreement will be entered into between the
Landlord and the Kunming Eye Hospital prior to the date of
completion on the following terms:

Date: On or before the date on which completion takes
place.

Parties:

1. Kunming Shirong Industrial Company Limited (2 RE{R
BEHE AT (the “Landlord”) as the landlord, all
equity interest of which is held by the vendors

2. Kunming Eye Hospital (as the tenant)

(ii)
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Duration: Three years from the date on which completion
takes place, which can be renewed for further terms of
three years at the option of the Kunming Eye Hospital with
the annual rental cannot be increased by more than 4.0%.

Annual rental: RMB2,917,000 (for the first year),
RMB3,500,000 (for the second year) and RMB3,500,000 (for
the third year). These amounts of rental are determined with
reference to market transactions of comparable commercial
buildings, including offices and medical use premises. The
rental under the lease agreement shall be payable in cash
quarterly one month before the end of the relevant quarter.

Subject matter: The Kunming Eye Hospital shall continue
to use the Hospital Premises as an eye hospital free from all
encumbrances and third parties’ interest and has exclusive
possession of the Hospital Premises during the term of the
lease agreement.

Governing law: Laws of the PRC

For further details, please refer to the announcement dated
28 August 2018.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition has not yet
been completed.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
our Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules
for those related party transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which are set
out in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 50 to 53.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements constituted a
discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As of 31 December 2018, none of our Directors is interested in
any business, apart from our Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of our Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Our Company has share option schemes, the details of which are
set out in the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme” in the Report of our Directors.
Save as the aforesaid, no equity-linked agreement was entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up
to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As of 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of our Directors and chief executive of our Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of our Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to our Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) were as follows:
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(A) Long and short position in Shares of our
Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EEpE ERnE

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Interest of controlled
Dennis JP corporation

MIEMBEE (K FHL) RELEEER

Ms. LI Xiaoting Interest of spouse
FHELL [N

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam  Beneficial owner

Elp ek BEmfEBEA

Note: 722,696,756 Shares are beneficially owned by C-MER Group
Limited (“C-MER Group”). C-MER Group is owned as to
70% by Dr. Dennis LAM and 30% by Ms. LI Xiaoting. Ms.
Ll is the spouse of Dr. Dennis LAM, and both of them have
been managing and operating our business collectively
and reaching consensus before making major decisions in
respect of our business. Both Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI
will continue to act jointly following the Listing so far as the
exercise of the voting rights attached with our Shares (through
C-MER Group) is concerned.

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Dennis LAM is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by C-MER Group.

Report of the Directors
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(A) RERFROGWFRERKRE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

our Company (%)
Number of shares RAARQ B R HE
BB B BAE D (%)

722,696,756

(long position) (Note)
722,696,756 1%

(57 &) (&)

2,000,000
(short position)
2,000,000 f% (% 2&)

722,696,756

(long position) (Note)
722,696,756 %

(57 &) (&)

2,000,000
(short position)
2,000,000 f% (% &)

8,030,865
(long position)
8,030,865 % (4F &)

MaE :722,696,756 R R h B IS EEFIR

69.8%

0.2%

69.8%

0.2%

0.8%
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(B) Long position in underlying Shares of our (B) RAEATMEBRONHERE -BY
Company - physically settled unlisted equity HEIELTRATTETLR
derivatives

Number of
underlying shares Approximate
in respect of percentage of
the share options shareholding in
granted (Note 1) our Company (%)
Name of Director Nature of Interest ERRHBREN RS A 7 IR RE
EENHA fEmME EERAEE (FaE1) BAE 2 (%)
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent  Beneficial owner 12,953,000 1.3%
Thge L BEnlEA A (long position) (Note)
12,953,000 i%
(57 &) (&)
Mr. LI Chunshan Beneficial owner 777,000 0.08%
=HEE BEnlEA A (long position) (Note)
777,000 i%
(57 &) (&)
Interest of spouse 259,000 0.03%
A= (long position) (Note)
259,000 i%
(57 &) (&)
Note: ik
Details of the above share options granted by our Company are set B LA R R EOBREFIBTHRA
out in the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Post- RETERLAAEERBRET S REXR
IPO Share Option Scheme” in this report. N EREREE & -
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(C) Long position in shares of associated corporation
— C-MER Group

Nature of Interest

BEME

Name of Director

E=nS

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Beneficial owner
Dennis JP BEaEE A

MIEREE &+ (X FH# L)

Ms. LI Xiaoting Beneficial owner
FHERL BEHEEAA

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2018, so far as
is known to our Directors or chief executive of our Company,
none of our Directors or chief executive of our Company
had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of our Company or its associated
corporations which (a) were required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Number of shares

.
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(O REBEZERONERE-FHE

£l

Approximate
percentage of
the issued shares

(%)
REBRITRG
R4o 8 E A E D (%)

1,400 (long position) 70.0%
1,400 8% (47 &)

600 (long position) 30.0%

600 % (47 &)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF OUR COMPANY

As of 31 December 2018, so far as was known to any Director or
chief executive of our Company, the following persons (other than
our Directors and chief executive of our Company) had interests
and/or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to our Company pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by our Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

BR 3R & B REEME

C-MER Group Beneficial owner

wHEHE EnlEEA
Note:

C-MER Group is owned as to 70% by Dr. Dennis LAM and 30% by Ms.
LI Xiaoting. Ms. LI is the spouse of Dr. Dennis LAM, and both of them
have been managing and operating our business collectively and reaching
consensus before making major decisions in respect of our business. Both
Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI will continue to act jointly following the Listing
so far as the exercise of the voting rights attached with our Shares (through
C-MER Group) is concerned.

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Dennis LAM is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by C-MER Group.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2018, our Directors
were not aware that there is any other party (not being a Director
or chief executive of our Company) who had an interest or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of our Company,
which would fall to be disclosed to our Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded
in the register required to be kept by our Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

FERRRAAERQFREG R EBER G
MERRAR

R2018F 12 318  MEMEF K AR
AESTHRABRA  TIHAL(EFERA
REEEITBABRIN) R =68 B i (5
FHREREZESRAERAEXVIHBE2R
35 ERA R A A BB B sk R SR AR A R RIE
BAREEENE3E6KAEFENE M
REERS AR -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

our Company (%)

Number of shares RS A 7B
Ra &R BAE D (%)
722,696,756 69.8%
(long position) (Note)
722,696,756 i%
(57 &) (&)
2,000,000 0.2%

(short position)

2,000,000 8% X&)

GES

FHEEEMEREERTEEL I ORIEAE
70% N 30% KA 2k o T4+ AMWIERE A /9 id
B BEMAY—EXREEREERMNESL
PMERBBRMEBHERRKAERK —HER °
MIEEEE £ MF L TR ETESEM (EREL
EEDITEROIEEEEELRITE -

RIBZ S LHAEGRD - MRS LR RREF
BEESANBRO R EAEE

Br ESCRTHER &SN - REEFTAD - 742018
F12ANH -BEAANEMAL(TBEE
ERARADNREHTHAE) RAARRMD K&
R D REIREES REBEERHIEXY
B2 K3 EEE S EM AR A1 #E FE ok D
BN AR B IRIEE FH K HE 5 F) 25336 1§
BAFENELMRNERIAE -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to our Company and
to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
our Company has always maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by our Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on
pages 60 to 71 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Details of the significant event after the balance sheet date are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on page 18 of
this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of our Company. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the independent auditor of our
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of our Board
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019

Report of the Directors
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards.

The Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange since Listing
Date. During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2018, the Company has applied the principles as set forth in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which are applicable to the
Company.

In the opinion of the Board, during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2018, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions as set forth in the CG Code, save and
except for code provision A.2.1 which states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis is
both our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and is responsible
for the overall management of the Group and directing the
strategic development and business plans of the Group.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same individual would enable
the Company to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and
effectiveness when formulating business strategies and executing
business plans. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced
and high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises four
executive Directors (including Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis) and five
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board of
Directors will nevertheless review the structure and composition
of the Board of Directors from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set forth in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions of the Directors. Employees of the Group
(the “Relevant Employees”) who, because of their office or
employment, are likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Company or its securities are also subject to compliance with
the Model Code. Following specific enquiry, each of the Directors
has confirmed compliance with the Model Code throughout the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees
was noted by the Company during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2018.

TEERER
EEEEN BB EKTODEEAIDE -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members as follows:

Executive Directors:
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LI Xiaoting
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent
Mr. LI Chunshan

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS JP

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung

Mr. CHAN Chi Leong

Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary” on pages 22 to 31 of this annual report.
The relationships between the members of the Board are also
disclosed under the same section.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are served by Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP and have
not been segregated as required under code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code. The Board is of the view that such arrangement
provided the Group with strong and consistent leadership to the
Company and allowed for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long term business
strategies.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one
of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Corporate Governance Report
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Each of the executive Directors is appointed under a service
contract for a term of three years from 28 June 2017 which
is terminable by either party by giving three months’ written
notice to the other party. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors is appointed under a services contract for a term of three
years from 13 December 2017 which is terminable by either party
by giving three months’ written notice to the other party.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following
annual general meeting after his/her appointment and they will be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the Chairman, Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis,
determines and monitors the overall strategy and policies, annual
budgets and business plans, evaluates the performance of the
Group, and supervises the management of the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review
of the corporate and financial policies, review and assessment
of the Company’s financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group’s business and affairs.

All Directors, including and independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
management of the Group, who possesses extensive operating
experience and industry knowledge, and also instructs the
management to implement the Board's decisions and resolutions.

The Board reserves its powers over decision of all major matters
which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s)
or Director(s)), financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

Corporate Governance Report
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Summary of training received by the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2018 according to the records as provided by
the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HTES

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP MRIE T B8 £ (X Fagt)
Ms. LI Xiaoting FHELZT

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent THEBRE

Mr. LI Chunshan ZHIEE
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FEHITEE

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam Elp geay

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS JP

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung SRR A
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong PR o A4
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang Rlfe izt

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
(www.cmereye.com) and the HKEx's website (www.hkexnews.hk)
and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out in the Corporate
Information on pages 2 to 3 of this annual report.

FERBLE (REHEE K F#HL)

RIEEERHENIE  EENEHE20184F
NRANBHIEFEMEXHFIOBENT
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relevant topics
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Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review,
supervise, and assist the Board in providing an independent view
of, our financial reporting processes, and internal control and risk
management systems, as well as to oversee the audit process,
review our annual and interim financial statements, provide advice
and comments to the Board on matters related to corporate
governance, and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held 3 meetings to review the interim and annual financial results
and reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit
function, appointment of external auditors and relevant scope of
work.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
had 3 meetings with the external auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
(i) develop and review the policies and the structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; (ii)
evaluate the performance of, and make recommendations on the
remuneration packages and long-term incentive compensation
or equity plans for, the Directors and senior management; and
(iii) evaluate and make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting to review and make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management and other related matters. Details of the
Director’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code provision
B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of other members
of the senior management by bands for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HKD)

1,000,000 and below
1,000,001 to 1,500,000

FMEE (Bx)
1,000,000 % LA 1
1,000,001 % 1,500,000 1
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Nomination Committee

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment and
removal of Directors and senior management, and on matters of
succession planning.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to professional
qualifications, regional and industry experience, educational and
cultural background, skills, industry knowledge, reputation and
gender. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and review of
re-appointment of retiring Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and the guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENZEERENHFERE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and SEEZREE2018F12A31AEFER
Board committee meetings of the Company held during the year THARGEFSSERESFETLEES
ended 31 December 2018 set out in the table below: EHEFERREEET

Attendance/Number of Meetings

e/ ERRH

Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit  Annual General
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEnE g REZEE FMzRE ERZRE RRBFAS
Executive Directors
HITEF
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
MIBHE £ (X F#1) NEH NER A
Ms. LI Xiaoting 4/4 N/A 17 N/A 1”7
FHBLL TEA Gyl
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent 4/4 N/A N/A N/A on
FHER TER TER TEA
Mr. LI Chunshan 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
FRILKE ik ek AN
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHRITEE
Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam 3/4 " 7 N/A 0N
AEmBE Ti#A
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald $BS JP 4/4 N/A N/A 2/3 0N
FEREAE TEA ik

(REHEE A FHL)

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung 3/4 " N/A 3/3 I
SRELE Sk

Mr. CHAN Chi Leong 4/4 7 17 N/A 1”1
REREE T@Em

Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang 3/4 N/A N/A 23 171
RRERT Nk &R
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 72 to 79 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration that should be paid to the
external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for
the audit of the year ended 31 December 2018 and non-audit
services is set out below:

EEREMBRRNER
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FEE2018FE12A31BILEENET &
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B oKk 38 & 5 A0 B S BTSN BN 5 AT ST
N

Fees Paid/Payable

g ENER

HK$°000

Services rendered P2 fit AR 7 FAET

Audit service Fit iR 1,500
Non-audit Services FEEFHARTS

— tax compliance service — B E RRE 203

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s assets and the interests of shareholders. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company on 20 March 2019, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function.
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The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal
control structure are as follows:

- Well-defined organisational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and
responsibilities to minimise risk of errors and abuse;

- Clear and written policies and procedures have been
established and regularly reviewed for major functions and
operations;

- Important business functions or activities are managed by
experienced, qualified and suitably trained staff;

- Continuous monitoring of the key operating data and
performance indicators, timely and up-to-date business and
financial reporting, immediate corrective actions are taken
where necessary; and

- Internal audit function to perform independent appraisal of
major operations on an ongoing basis.

A risk-based approach is adopted to ensure that a methodical
coverage of the Group's operations and resources are focused
on high risk areas. The internal audit team takes the lead to
evaluate the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group by reviewing the major operations of the Group on a
rotational basis every year. The review covers all material controls
including financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management. Review results and recommendations in the form
of written reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for
discussion and review. Follow up actions will be taken up by the
internal audit team to ensure that findings previously identified
have been properly resolved. The Board had discussed with the
external auditor and reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2018, and considered them effective and adequate.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. With a view to
identifying, handling and disseminating inside information, various
procedures including pre-clearance on dealing in the securities
of the Company by designated members of management,
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions to relevant directors and employees, restrictions on
access to financial records and dissemination of information on a
need-to-know basis have also been implemented by the Group to
guard against possible mishandling of inside information within
the Group.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
TREB®RS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Wa Ping, who is the Company secretary of the
Company, reports directly to the Board and is responsible for, inter
alia, providing updated and timely information to all Directors
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Chan has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

1. Convene an extraordinary general meeting/put
forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held with two months after
the deposit of such requisition at the Company’s Hong
Kong office at Suite 1535, Central Building, 1-3 Pedder
Street, Central, Hong Kong. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements under Article 58 of the Articles of Association
once a valid requisition is received.
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2. propose a person for election as a Director:

As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as director”
under the section headed “Corporate Governance” of the
Company’s website at www.cmereye.com.

3. put forth enquiries to the Company:

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board'’s
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Suite 1535, Central
Building, 1-3 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other extraordinary general meetings. At
the annual general meetings, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The Company’'s website (www.cmereye.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the
company to the shareholders, other stakeholders and investors.
The Company will also update the website information from time
to time to inform the shareholders and investors of the latest
development of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is available on
both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B3RS

i
pwec

To the Shareholders of C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of C-MER Eye Care Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 80 to 191, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

J the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B M B BLEm R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BRENEE
Provision for impairment of trade receivables

85 BERRERERE

Refer to note 4(a) (Critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgments) and note 17 (Trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2018, the gross trade receivables
of the Group were approximately HK$6.3 million,
which were assessed by management of the
Company as not impaired.

Management assesses the expected credit losses
allowance of trade receivables based on the
lifetime expected credit losses. Trade receivables are
grouped by shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on the historical loss experience
and adjusted to reflect the effects of current
conditions as well as forward looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET N mEEEARETEE

We understood, evaluated and validated the key control
on credit control procedures performed by management,
including its procedures on periodic review on aged trade
receivables, and assessment on expected credit losses of
these receivables.

We sent audit confirmations to customers on a sample
basis to confirm the trade receivable balances outstanding
at year end.

We tested the accuracy of the ageing profile of trade
receivables on a sample basis by checking to the sales
invoices.

We tested the subsequent settlement of trade receivables
on a sample basis by tracing to bank receipts.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

HREETEE

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)
B 5 BWECR R ERE (8)

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
involves management judgment and the actual
outcome may be different from original estimation.

We focused on this area because of the significance
of the gross trade receivables to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and
judgment involved in the determination of the
expected credit losses of these trade receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFNMEEFEREN SR

We obtained management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses allowance of trade receivables. We
corroborated and validated management’s assessment
based on the historical settlement pattern, correspondence
with customers, evidence from external sources including
relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding relevant forward looking information
such as macroeconomic factors applied in management’s
assessment.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation
and judgment made by management in determining the
expected credit losses allowance of trade receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.
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B M B BLEm R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cecilia, Lai Ting Yau.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue W as 5 429,374 311,228
Cost of revenue HE KA 8 (280,037) (175,797)
Gross profit EF 149,337 135,431
Other income HAB WA 6 14,268 2,407
Selling expenses SHEMS 8 (26,501) (11,263)
Administrative expenses TR 8
— Listing expenses —LFWEA (2,021) (24,160)
— Other administrative expenses —HiTBAZ (64,867) (43,584)
Other (losses)/gains, net EHih (E18) R FE 7 (8,890) 210
Operating profit e R 61,326 59,041
Finance expenses B 5 2 10 (160) (555)
Profit before income tax R B 18 B AT B 61,166 58,486
Income tax expense FriSfif X 11 (18,595) (18,359)
Profit for the year FRAHE 42,571 40,127
Item that may be subsequently reclassified Hi#2{ & B H 2
to profit or loss 1R e 9 H
Currency translation differences HNES I B = E (7,731) 5,588
Total other comprehensive FREMZ2E (BE)
(loss)/income for the year LONE:] (7,731) 5,588
Total comprehensive income AAREREEAEML
attributable to equity holders 2EBAHLE
of the Company 34,840 45,715
Earnings per share for profit FREDAFERFEA
attributable to equity holders EBERENESRAER
of the Company during the year (AR EWSIR)
(expressed in HK cents per share)
- basic —HK 12 4.16 5.22
— diluted — 88 12 4.04 5.15

FESE1I BN EERZERE VR
R —ED o

The notes on pages 85 to 191 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets
Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Current income tax recoverable

Bank deposits with original maturity
over three months

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Consolidated Balance Sheet

BE
FRBEE
BIVEE
ELEFEREE
BE RIENFOR

hRBEE

e

B 5 WA

BE - ANRER
H fth FE U RROR
BRHEFABRD
THEE

A4 O BIEA PR S AR
REIEIE B =18 A
M ERTT 13K
EEMRITER
RekReEED

o

REEERER

As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2018 2017
2017 £
HK$'000
FHT

2018 &
HK$'000
F & T

13 110,484 109,179
14 3,827 2,453
26 1,047 935
18 8,905 10,809
124,263 123,376

15 9,145 6,873
17 6,259 7,692
18 14,122 9,407
20 11,397 60
819 -

19(a) 249,099 -
19(b) - 8,000
19(c) 471,745 77,969
762,586 110,001

886,849 233,377

21 103,511 37
730,194 157,386

833,705 157,423
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-I— Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEEEEBR

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings &% 25 1,748 665
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFSHAE 26 = 15
S 7. . S 680
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables =) ANEeE 27 5,362 6,892
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R HA
FET IR 28 41,643 53,796
Amount due to a related party FET — 2 BB 75 3RIR 31 20 153
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTS i A E 3,647 6,151
Borrowings [EEN 25 724 8,282
oo oo e ieiccceeemecemiccccceoooeeo.. N 51,396 75,274
Total liabilities wes 53,144 75,954
Total equity and liabilities HEZLEE 886,849 233,377

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 191 were E80E 191 BEME A M TBFHREXE KL 2019F
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 and were SH26BEESGHAELREEE -
signed on its behalf.

LAM Shun Chiu Dennis LI Xiaoting
K JIE % THE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEE

The notes on pages 85 to 191 are an integral part of these FEE1MNEMMTBEZELRETBR
consolidated financial statements. K —EH o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity -I—

MEEREEX
Statutory Share-
Share surplus based
capital Share reserve Exchange payment Retained
(Note 21) premium (Note 22) reserve reserve eamings
EEBE R e
k& it RERN
(W& 21) RivEE (W22 MERE  AREE  REERA fazt
HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK§000 HK§000 HKS000 HKS000
7T 7 BT FEn FEn
As at 1 January 2017 R2017£1A18 16 - 2819 (5,89%) - 66,493 63432
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - - 40,127 40,127

Other comprehensive income ~ Ht2FHA
tems that may be subsequenty — E#HEEHTEZ

redlassified to proft or loss ErmEs
Currengy translation differences ~ JMNEHEZE - - - 5,588 - - 5,588
Transactions with equity holders SfEZEEANR 5
Proceeds from shares isstied Sl " 141,99 - - - - 142,017
Share-based payments (Note 23)  BARIA BEHERIFF

(Bz23) - - - - 6,259 - 6,259
Transer to statutory reserve BRTATHE - - 2673 - - (2673) -
Dividends paid (Note 24) BfRE (K 24) - (20,000) - - - (80,000) (100,000)
As at 31 December 2017 R2017E12831R 37 121,99 5492 (308) 6,259 23947 157,423
As at 1 January 2018 R2018%1518 37 121,99 5,492 (308) 6,259 23,947 157,423
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year ERFIE
Other comprehensive loss A2 ERE - - - - - 2,57 0,57
tems that may be subsequenty B HEEHTEZ

redassified to proft or loss ErtEs
Currency tranlation differences ~ SMEREZE - - - (1.7131) - - (1.731)
Transactions with equity holders S EEANR 5
Capitalisation of share premum -~ REEEERL

(Note 21(e) (st 21(e) 80,263 (80,263) - - - - -
lssuance of shares upon listing 54 BB

(Note 21(f) (FE21(h) 19,700 551,600 - - - - 571,300
lssuance of shares upon evercise N BERREETEE

of over-allotment option Bk (WE 21(g))

(Note 21(g)) 2,955 82,740 - - - - 85,695
Share issuance costs RiEARA - (22,656) - - - = (22,656)
Share-based payments (Note 23 MARIA BEHERIA 3

(Bz23) - - - - 6,547 - 6,547
lssuance of shares upon exercise ~ NENAFZERER

of pre-IPO share options BEIRREIRG

(Note 23) GiEE) 556 - - - - - 556
Transfer to statutory reserve SEREERE - - 3013 - - (3013) -
As at 31 December 2018 R20185 12318 103,511 653,417 8,505 (8,039) 12,806 63,505 833,705

The notes on pages 85 to 191 are an integral part of these FEE1BENNTEEZEGEE V%R
consolidated financial statements. RE)—E D o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEEERER

Year ended 31 December
HE12H31HLEEE
2018 2017
20174
HK$°000
FET

2018 F
HK$°000
FET

Cash flows from operating activities K& FEFFEBRERE
Cash generated from operations KESIR S 29(a) 62,823 82,703
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁﬁ SH (21,919) (17,219)
Net cash generated from KEEHFBRSFE
operatlng act|V|t|es 40,904 65,484
Cash flows from investing activities REZEBHEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E¥% « BiE KR 1E (29,777) (62,435)
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEME WEX
plant and equipment B EEE S (1,920) (3,152)
Purchase of intangible assets HBERTEE (2,003) (1,118)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  HEK
plant and equipment RABFTIS IR 29(b) 202 59
Interest received B R 2 11,709 877
Proceeds from/(placement of) Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
pledged bank deposits I8, (FREER
fEﬂT x) 8,000 (8,000)
Increase in bank deposits with original REHAE®BBE=EAN
maturity over three months HRITFFIE N (249,099) -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value ~ BEIZAFET AER
through profit or loss Mem&EE (16,504) (27,706)
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value & A F(EH AIBEH)
through profit or loss TREEMBHIA 4,791 40,650
Advances to directors and shareholders RETEE R R
B} - (29,041)
Net cash used in investing activities WREEBFTAREFE (274,601) (89,866)
Cash flows from financing activites BEEZBHFERSHE
Proceeds from borrowings fERFT1S 58 29(d) = 18,000
Repayments of borrowings BEER 29(d) (8,000) (27,576)
Repayment of finance lease Egg rﬂéfﬂfﬁ 29(d) (703) -
Repayment to a related party BE—Z@EHRE 29(d) = (10,719)
Repayment to shareholders and directors 18 3& J& 5 N & F 708 29(d) = (10,810)
Interest paid EENEEES (160) (555)
Listing costs paid and capitalised BN ERNH
FTEA (18,255) (3,760)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT PTIS R 656,995 142,017
Proceeds from exercise of pre-IPO share Tﬂiéxkﬂﬁﬁ?‘é’%m
options BARERTIS R 557 -
Dividend paid BAIE = (65,387)
Net cash generated from financing BB BB TSR F R
activities 630,434 41,210
Net increase in cash and cash ReRReEEYN
equivalents N FEE 396,737 16,828
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ F#IR& MRS EEY
of the year 77,969 58,760
Currency translation differences AN =R (2,961) 2,381
Cash and cash equivalents FRAS MR SEEY
at end of the year 19(c) 471,745 77,969
The notes on pages 85 to 191 are an integral part of these %85 % 191 EE’]W.&%WE LR AR

consolidated financial statements.

EzH—Eo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2016
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
provision of ophthalmic services and sales of vision aid
products in Hong Kong (“HK") and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). The Company has been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 15 January 2018.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollar and all values are rounded to nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
and periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity or areas when assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

e MR R MR

— &R
FEBRBBEERBR AR (TRA
A1) R2016F2 A1 HIREHSHS
EDIZE 22 % R AE (1961 F B35 %
Bl & ir e RBF]) EHEHSEM
R RERRBER AR o ANA A M
% = EE A & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

AR B —EREERAR - REH
BAR (ABIAER])ETERNES
([B&]) khzEAREME ([FE])
RERBERSREERIHYPER -
B2018F 1 A15HE  ARAIEEE
BEMARGMERARER LM °

FRIERBIEAIN B MB|MER AL
T2 -MABEBENEZT T (T
BIL) °

TESTHRERBE

REGAVBENMAIESITEE
AT -BRAEEAEIN ZER
RRFEZVFERPRERER -

21 REEE
GRAEMERRELBRE LSS
mAag ((H5estmagl) i
HHEBMEREEL ([HB
PR HmEEL]) REBRQRE
PE2L2EMNHRERE - 165
BMRIBFE LKA EHE I
EREAFEFAEZN SR
BEGEAFEIER MEMG
EHRIERT ©

BREBM B RE LR RRER
EMBREREAFEAETEEZS
AR - BERERETCRAAER
SETRRFINAEDL HE -8
EBRESEEMHE RIEFEN
HEIBRERGTEHEREMB
RREEAFENGEERN
MIsE4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by

the Group

The following standards and amendments to
standards have been adopted by the Group for
the first time for the financial year beginning on

1 January 2018:

HKAS 40
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2

(Amendments)

HKFRS 4
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Transfers of Investment
Property

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016
Cycle

The Group had to change its accounting
policies following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15. The adoption of other amendments
and interpretation listed above did not have
material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and consolidated financial statements.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new standards, amendments and
interpretation to standards which have been
issued, but are effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and have
not been early adopted by the Group:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

EEGHEAE 1K RER
SEERIE S5 (BRI &)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

BB ERE195%
(1BETA)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

B @ EHERIE 285 (B4T)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

ERUBREENEIR
(1BETA)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

BERUBREENEIR
(1BETA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

ERMBREENE 105
REBEB G ERE 285
(1BETA)

HKFRS 16

ERUMBREENE 165

HKFRS 17

BERUMBRERNE1TR

HKFRSs (Amendments)

BERUBREER (BITR)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23
BE(ARMBRERE
Z88)-RBEE23H
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
2018 FHBHEHRER

21 mEBEEG

Definition of Material
EANTE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
FTEBR] ~ RS

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
REERAIRAELENRIES
Definition of a Business

XBEHMEER

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
AR AMENRANIER

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

KEFHHEBENRREECEMNEENLE
FEA

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts

REREH

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

2015F £ 2017 FBHMOFBH B RS LR
FRENE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

PSR IR 6 MR E 15
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

RETHBREMSER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

FESHBERE @)

(b) New and amended standards not yet (b) [F KRR B AT R AZ 15
adopted ETER)

AT AE BMER2019F
112 BB K
S A U AR B
R AR F ] &R
AHERT A N2 iE

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RT3 AR
ZEAEN
FEHBER

1 January 2020
202051 A1H

1 January 2019
20191 A1H

1 January 2019
2019% 1 A1H
1 January 2020
202051 A1H

1 January 2019
20191 A1H

To be determined

R

1 January 2019
2019% 1 A1H
1 January 2021
202151 A1H
1 January 2019
2019% 1 A1H

1 January 2019
20191 A1H

1 January 2020

20201 A1H

s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet

adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 addresses the definition of a lease,
recognition and measurement of leases and
establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements
about the leasing activities of both lessees and
lessors. A key change arising from HKFRS 16 is
that most operating leases will be accounted
for on balance sheet for lessees. The standard
replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”, and related
interpretations.

The Group is a lessee of various properties
which are currently classified as operating
leases. The Group's current accounting policy for
such leases is set out in Note 2.24 under which
operating lease payment is accounted for in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when incurred and the Group’s future
operating lease commitments are not reflected in
the consolidated balance sheet but are disclosed
in Note 30(b). As of 31 December 2018, the
Group’s total operating lease commitments
amounted to HK$146,541,000. HKFRS 16
provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases and all non-current leases,
including future operating lease commitments,
must be recognised in the form of an asset (for
the right of use) and a financial liability (for the
payment obligation). Short-term leases of less
than twelve months and leases of low-value
assets are exempt from the reporting obligation.
The new standard will therefore result in an
increase in assets and financial liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet. Operating expenses
under otherwise identical circumstances will
decrease, and depreciation, amortisation and
interest expense will increase. It is expected that
certain portion of these lease commitments will
be required to be recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as right of use assets and lease
liabilities.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

FESHBERE @)

21 mEBEEG

(b) New and amended standards not yet (b) 5 K ERABIFT 5T R AZ A
adopted (Continued) TR (%)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) ERMKEHRESERE 1655
(el (E)

The new standard is effective for first interim
period of the financial year commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.

For the other new and amended standards
presented, management is in the process of
making an assessment of the likely impact of
these changes but is not yet in a position to state
whether they will result in substantial changes to
the Group’s significant accounting policies and
the presentation of its financial statements.

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(@) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of
HKAS 39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities,
derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9
resulted in changes in accounting policies.
The new accounting policies are set out in
notes 2.8 and 2.9 below.

FATZ R # R 2019F 1 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(@)

(i)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Classification and measurement of
financial instruments

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's
management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held
by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9
categories.

The Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") continue with their
classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

There is no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as
the new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at FVPL and the Group does
not have any such liabilities.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(@)

(ii)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial
assets that are subject to HKFRS 9's new
expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables; and

° other financial assets carried at
amortised cost

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9
for each of these classes of assets.

While cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits and bank deposits with
original maturity over three months
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

e BRRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(@)

(ii)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected losses for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. Future cash flows for each
group receivables are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience, adjusted
to reflect the effects of current conditions
as well as forward looking information.
Trade receivables in dispute are assessed
individually for impairment allowance and
determined whether specific provisions are
required. Trade receivables are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery.

The Group has assessed the adoption
of expected credit loss model on trade
receivables and the change in impairment
methodologies has no significant impact
to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the opening loss allowance
as at 1 January 2018 is not restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(@)

(ii)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

The Group's other financial assets carried
at amortised cost include deposits and
other receivables in the consolidated
balance sheet. The impairment loss of
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured based on the 12-month
expected credit loss. The 12-month
expected credit loss is the portion of
lifetime expected credit loss that results
from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime
expected credit loss.

The Group has assessed the adoption of
the expected credit loss model on other
receivables as at 1 January 2018 and the
change in impairment methodologies
has no significant impact to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the
opening loss allowance as at 1 January
2018 is not restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

2

R M A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue
standards: HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, and the related
Interpretations on revenue recognition.
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining when to
recognise revenue and how much revenue
to recognise through a 5-step approach:
(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;
(2) Identify separate performance
obligations in a contract; (3) Determine the
transaction price; (4) Allocate transaction
price to performance obligations; and (5)
Recognise revenue when performance
obligation is satisfied. The core principle is
that a company should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to the customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which
the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. It
moves away from a revenue recognition
model based on an ‘earnings processes
to an 'asset-liability’ approach based on
transfer of control.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 from 1
January 2018 which resulted in changes in
accounting policies. The new accounting
policies are set out in notes 2.22 below. In
accordance with the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has adopted
the modified retrospective approach
and comparative figures have not been
restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (Continued)

The impact on the Group’s financial
position by the application of HKFRS 15 is
as follows:

Consolidated balance sheet %A EEBEX (857) :

(extract):

Accruals and other payables [T A K £t B 308

2017F12A31H
:1e ke
HKS$000

FET FET FET

_|_

e BRRME

2 FEEHEHME®

21 WMREE
2.1.1 85 B REE ()
(b) FEBHMBHMELEDE
ISRIREEFEN
s | (48)
FREBM RS E
Bl 25 15 50 4 A &£ &
HBRRELENTE
mT

31 December
2017
As previously 1 January 2018
stated Restated
Reclassification 20181818
EHoE ]l
HK$'000 HK$'000

- Contract liabilities -&HBRE - 2,894 2,894
— Receipt in advance —TEUGRIR 2,894 (2,894) -
Reclassification of advance payments B % 7 YR 2 5R
received from clients was made from B[ TERFIE]E5
“receipt in advance” to “contract PEEENEE] -
liabilities” to reflect the terminology used AR E BB @S
under HKFRS 15. R FEISHETE
FRETEE
The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no BRIFFEZEBIN - AN
other material impact to the Group’s BB HREERF
consolidated financial statements other 15 5% I & 3 R & [
than changes in disclosures. e mREEH
MEARFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of

the acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as a bargain purchase.
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e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable
in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
re-measured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquired entity is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances, and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘other (losses)/
gains, net'.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group's entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy), that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

() all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Medical equipment
Leasehold improvements

5-10 years

lease term or

estimated useful life

Office furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “other (losses)/gains, net” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Shorter of remaining
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly comprise acquired computer
software.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring the specific software into usage. These costs are
amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years. Cost associated
with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets

()

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial asset carried at FVPL are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iif) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other
(losses)/gains, net. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The Group’s financial assets
carried at amortised cost comprise
“trade receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables”, “bank deposits with original
maturity over three months”, “pledged
bank deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance
sheet (notes 2.12 and 2.13).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(iif) Measurement (Continued)

Debt

instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other (losses)/gains, net. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other (losses)/
gains, net and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(iif) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)
o Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
in other (losses)/gains, net in the period in
which it arises. The Group’s financial assets
carried at FVPL comprise “structured bank
deposits” in the consolidated balance

sheet.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial asset at
FVPL are recognised in other (losses)/gains, net
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported

separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iif) Measurement (Continued)

(iv) Impairment

)

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,
but has elected not to restate comparative
information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted
for in accordance with the Group's previous
accounting policy.

(i) Classification

Until 31 December 2017, the Group
classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables and at fair value through profit
or loss. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(i)
(a)

Classification (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade receivables”, “deposits
and other receivables”, “bank deposits
with original maturity over three months”,
“pledged bank deposits” and “cash and
cash equivalents” in the consolidated
balance sheet (notes 2.12 and 2.13).

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets designated
in this category. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-
current. The Group's financial assets at
FVPL comprise “structured bank deposits”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Recognition, derecognition and
measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of
investments are recognised on the trade-
date being the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” category are
presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “other
(losses)/gains, net” in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

2

e BRRME

FESHBREME @)
28 RERHMEMEE (&)

(v) #EZF2017%12531HF
FEAYEBE(E)
(iii) JRME (&)

TER M ERIEE
s BESED
REERmERLZS
BB EREERFEYT
B G AR RIB SR
ERETBEEHE
EENERREEE
B)EHEREFE -
BEEREES T Y
W MEBEEBRER
AarmElkERP®E
R WEFIREBF
KB BFtEAW
RMEBEBOITEERA
RIEANEENIRT
ERAER - EEERE
AL AEBARA
AR IS ERE
TEMRFEER
& o

R ERBERNERE
& ABHRRER A - A%
B R BB HE A SR
BMERELENEMHA
BE (DI EB AR
AN E) Al
A 52 A (B S 1R Y
Bognmzezmmik
R HER ©

+

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —Z&— \FF 113 '



_|_

‘ 114 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERMERERERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Other financial liabilities at
amortised cost are recognised initially at fair value net
of transaction costs incurred and subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the
other financial liabilities using the effective interest

method.

The Group’s other financial liabilities mainly comprise
“trade payables”, “accruals and other payables”,
“amount due to a related party” and “borrowings” in

the consolidated balance sheet.

Other financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Bank
borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of

the reporting period.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

Company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from clients,
commercial companies and local government for
services rendered and goods sold in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturity of three
months or less.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transactions costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.

As the Group does not have any qualifying assets,
all borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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+ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE MR ERMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

(iij) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

()

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as
accruals and other payables in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iij) Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is
recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.

2.19 Share-based payments
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from grantees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for grantees to save or holding shares for
a specified period of time).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the senior management,
ophthalmologists, physicians, employees and
consultants of subsidiary undertakings in the
Group is treated as a capital contribution.
The fair value of services received, measured
by reference to the grant date fair value, is
recognised over the vesting period as an increase
to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Provision for reinstatement cost

Provision for reinstatement cost is included in other
payables and represents the present value of the
estimated cost for the restoration work of the Group’s
leased premises agreed to be carried out upon the
expiry of the relevant leases using a risk-free pre-
tax interest rate. The provision has been determined
by the directors based on their best estimates. The
related reinstatement costs, upon initial recognition,
have been included as leasehold improvements in the
consolidated balance sheet (note 2.5).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contracts and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in

time.

Control of the goods or services is transferred over

time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and

consumed simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to

date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the goods or services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple elements, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on availability of observable

information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability,
depending on the relationship between the entity’s

performance and the customer’s payment.
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+ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from
providing ophthalmic services and sales of vision aid
products.

(a)

(b)

@
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Provision of ophthalmic services

The Group provides a range of ophthalmic
care, diagnostic, medical and surgical treatment
services at the eye centres, clinics and hospitals.
Revenue from ophthalmic services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the related
services are rendered and is recognised over the
period of the time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation. The progress towards the complete
satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurement of the value of
individual service transferred to the customer.

Sales of vision aid products

Revenue from sales of vision aid products
is recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products
are despatched to the client and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
client's acceptance of the products.

Management fee income

Revenue from management fee services is
recognised in the accounting period in which
the related services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income in the consolidate statement
of comprehensive income.

2.24 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.
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+ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE MR ERMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance
department under the supervision of the board of
directors. The board provides principles for overall risk
management.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument fluctuates
because of the changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The subsidiaries at the Group mainly
operate in HK and the PRC with most
of the transactions settled in HK$ and
Renminbi (“RMB") respectively. Foreign
exchange rate risk arises when recognised
financial assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the financial
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries of
the Group in HK and PRC are primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB, respectively
(2017: same).

As at 31 December 2018, if US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$2,380,000
(2017: nil) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents of subsidiaries with RMB
as their functional currency.

As at 31 December 2017, the financial
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries
of the Group in HK and PRC are
primarily denominated in HK$ and RMB,
respectively.

The Group will constantly review the
economic situation and its foreign
exchange risk profile, and will consider
appropriate hedging measures in the
future, as may be necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from the
reasonable possible change in interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
mainly arises from cash at banks and bank
borrowings at floating interest rates. As at
31 December 2018, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$335,000
higher/lower (2017: HK$239,000 higher/
lower), mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate bank balances and borrowings.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
mainly arises from finance lease liabilities
at fixed interest rates. The interest rate
profile of the Group’s finance lease
liabilities is disclosed in Note 25.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
bank deposits with original maturity over three
months, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated
balance sheet.

0]

Risk management

The credit risk of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits and
bank deposits with original maturity
over three months are limited because
the counterparties are state-owned or
reputable commercial banks which are
high-credit-quality financial institutions
located in HK and the PRC.

The Group, being a provider of ophthalmic
services to patients, has a highly diversified
client base, without any single client
contributing material revenue. Moreover,
some of the Group’s revenue is settled
by reputable commercial companies and
local government on behalf of patients.
The Group has controls to closely monitor
the patients’ billing and payment status
by communication with commercial
companies and local government to
minimise the credit risk.
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e BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected
credit loss model:

. trade receivables; and

° other financial assets carried at
amortised cost.

While cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits and bank deposits with
original maturity over three months
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, management
considers that the impairment loss is
immaterial.

Trade receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected losses for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. Future cash flows for each
group receivables are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience, adjusted
to reflect the effects of current conditions
as well as forward looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
Trade receivables in dispute are assessed
individually for impairment allowance and
determined whether specific provisions are
required. Trade receivables are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Based on the Group’s assessment,
the expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is close to zero and the loss
allowance for trade receivables was
immaterial as at 31 December 2018.

Other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried
at amortised cost include deposits and
other receivables in the consolidated
balance sheet. The impairment loss of
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured based on the 12-month
expected credit loss. The 12-month
expected credit loss is the portion of
lifetime expected credit loss that results
from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime
expected credit loss. Management has
closely monitored the credit qualities and
the collectability of the other financial
assets at amortised cost and considers that
the expected credit loss is immaterial as at
31 December 2018.
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e BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9]

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances,
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities from
leading banks and the ability to close out market
position.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-
term financial assets, receivables and certain
assets that the Group considers appropriate
and long term financing including long-term
borrowings are also considered by the Group
in its capital structuring. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient bank balances, committed credit lines
available and interest bearing borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for
the foreseeable future.

The table below analyses the financial
liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the consolidated balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table were the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay. Balance
within 12 months equal their carrying balances
as impact at discounting is not significant.

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain
a repayment on demand clause which can
be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay, that is if the lender were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effort. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HHERRERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREBEEZE®)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () mEMEE (&)

Between
Within 1and5
On demand 1 year years Total

REX -8  —Eif &%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TBT THET TiBT FiETL

As at 31 December 2018 RW2018%12A31H

Amount due to a related party & — & B R 20 - - 20
Trade payables B 2R HA - 5,362 = 5,362
Accruals and other payables  FE&TE A R H B
(excluding non-financial PRI BEELRE
liabilities) &f&) - 28,374 - 28,374
Finance lease liabilities BEMERRE - 782 1,815 2,597
20 34,518 1,815 36,353

As at 31 December 2017 R2017% 128318

Amount due to a related party &S — % B 5 7E 153 - - 153
Trade payables B HENZE - 6,892 - 6,892
Accruals and other payables  FE:F B F J H A E (T
(excluding non-financial FE(TEEELR
liabilities) af) - 45,737 - 45,737
Bank borrowings RITIE 8,000 - - 8,000
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE - 305 686 991
8,153 52,934 686 61,773
The table below analyses the bank borrowings TROMEDF RIZEK
of the Group into relevant maturity groupings BREREENBERLT
based on the remaining period at the end of the AEBREBRBREHRE
reporting period to the contractual maturity date S & Em B e T AR &
without taking into consideration the effect of S AMEED B AR AR
the clause of repayment on demand. 1TER -

Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and5
1 year years LIS

—FR  —EWF  WELRF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TET THET TET THT

As at 31 December 2017 RW2017%12A31H8
Bank borrowings RITIEH 8,174 - - 8,174
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e BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group uses borrowings to finance its operations.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
debt, where applicable.

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio is not
applicable due to net cash position (2017: same).

Fair value estimation

The carrying values of the Group’s current financial
assets, including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, bank deposits with original maturity over
three months, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities, including trade payables, accruals and
other payables, amount due to a related party and
borrowings approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2018 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

e BRRME

B 7SR P B R ()

3.3

DNFEMF )

TRZFEAFENMBEER
FEMAENEREAEBRR
2018F 12 A31 B AFEAR
MEeRTEETON - ZEH
ABERAFEEBRETABET
“ AR :

s HRBEXAEBENREAED
SRRE CREFHE) (F1
) e

e EEXAFEAERE (AE
%) skfE iz (BN ERISH)
BN AEBGE RRE
R HERIN (FB24) -

e EBEESABYHERNAE
EMBHEENEAE R
TRERBAE) (E3R)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R $E28 $38R B%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TR FET FETL
As at 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31A
Financial assets at fair value BOTEGFAEBEN
through profit or loss SREE
- Structured bank deposits —BERBERITER - 11,397 = 11,397
As at 31 December 2017 RW2017512A31R8
Financial assets at fair value RATEFABEN
through profit or loss SREE
- Structured bank deposits ~BEBERITER - 60 - 60

There were no transfers between levels during the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

REZE2018F 12 A31 B IEH

B EEMZELEER (2017
FE)
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e BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(©

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
the instrument.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

3

B R EE (E)
3.3 AFEMGEF (&)
(a) HWAZI1RZWEHET A

(b)

(©

EERMBEENERMT
HEORFE HAEER
MMEHREREE - ER
1B 7] BERs N E FAE X B P
RoE &R EREE -
EERGEAEEHRBEE
B MZERERKREL
FEEETHERNER
MHERS AZTSER
BTG AKREREN
TREEFRANMESRE

RBITHHEAE %%
TRASIAFE IR
SAE2RH 2@ T R

WHEREFRMEEEN S
BT A (MIZIIMTETR)
MAFEDEBEESE
BT ZEHEFERE
KRAEEMSHE (W
) TERETHFREE
BEME -WMiEIAR
FEMENEIFERNHA
EHTER  AZI A7
ANE24 -

ARemMIAGENRTE
HETEEE:

o TEAMNMEHRERR

FIAEIREMT A
R DT FEN-TPNE
I FEAR I8 7 B R T IS EUE
EBr RZETAESHY
ANZE3MH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the loss
allowances for trade receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

(b) Income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in HK and the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are some
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences would impact the current
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.
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e BRI

4

5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Share-based payment

The Group has awarded equity instruments to eligible
directors, senior management, ophthalmologists,
physicians, employees and consultants. The Group
has used binomial option pricing model to determine
the total fair value of the equity instruments awarded.
Significant estimates on key assumptions are required
to be made by the Company in determining the fair
value of the equity instruments.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Revenue

4

EESTHEF R A E )

(c)

(d)

M BERREBHAER
F 1

AEBEEEETEDE K
R e el 5t AT (2 R B &%
HEFEER - ZAEIRE
BEMEBEERDENDE
B 55 Ko 5% s 1O LR A] 2 A 6 1
- AT B8 A £ 1l Bl K 5 5
HFRUBBITEBHNTR
m#ELEREL - Al £ B F
BRI EE B8
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LARR 47 5 EL 1 9 1 3K
AEBERANAERNES &
MEEAER - RELER - B
BERERAELEZTA - X
SERA_AAREEEEL
BMEMROMBRTANAF
BERBE RETHEZTLANR
FER ARRARBRRRK
R B AR

Ws=koHER
(@) W=

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
Provision of ophthalmic services IR R EAR 399,905 291,076
Sales of vision aid products HER NEHBE M 29,469 20,152
429,374 311,228

Timing of revenue recognition W 2 B R Y s
Over time F A 399,905 291,076
At a point in time A 3 A RS 2 29,469 20,152
429,374 311,228
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used to making strategic
decisions. The chief operating decision-maker is
identified as the executive directors of the Company.
The executive directors consider the business from
a client perspective and assess the performance of
the operating segments based on segment revenue
and segment results for the purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance. These reports
are prepared on the same basis as these consolidated
financial statements.

Management considers the business is mainly located
in HK and the PRC, which the revenue and segment
results are determined by the geographical location
in which the client is operated. Management has
therefore identified the reportable segment based on
the Group’s geographic perspective, namely HK and
the PRC.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Other income, other (losses)/gains, net, listing
expenses, finance expenses, and income tax expense
are not included in segment results.
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e BRI

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WaEkoBMER @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZEHEHR(E)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HZE2018F 12 A31HIEFED
2018 are as follows: DEBEEEIIAT -

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31HILEE

HK PRC Total
BB H &5t
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FETT FETT FETT
Segment revenue 7 BB UL E 217,997 211,377 429,374
Gross profit E7 65,634 83,703 149,337
Selling expenses HERX (2,165) (24,336) (26,501)
Administrative expenses THRZ (21,681) (43,186) (64,867)
Segment results DEBEE 41,788 16,181 57,969
Other income H g A 14,268
Listing expenses X (2,021)
Other losses, net HBE T (8,890)
Finance expenses B (160)
Profit before income tax R P15 B4 AT A1) 61,166
Income tax expense TS X (18,595)
Profit for the year FRFHE 42,571
Other segment information ~ H b5 & ¥
Additions to non-current assets RN E IERENE E 15,952 18,433 34,385
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #T8 [ # 5 (17,527) (8,019) (25,546)
Gains/(losses) on disposal of HEWE  BEK
property, plant and equipment,  FREFTE MK
net (BE)F8E 45 (34) 11
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A EEmRME

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WaEkoBMER @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZEHEHR(E)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HZE2017F12A31HILEFED
2017 are as follows: DEBEEEIIAT -

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILEE

HK PRC Total
BB s B &
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F&T FET
Segment revenue 7 BB UL E 189,507 121,721 311,228
Gross profit EAH 66,722 68,709 135,431
Selling expenses HERX (796) (10,467) (11,263)
Administrative expenses TR X (16,773) (26,811) (43,584)
Segment results DEBEE 49,153 31,431 80,584
Other income H At Ug A 2,407
Listing expenses X (24,160)
Other gains, net H fth Uy = F BE 210
Finance expenses BB (555)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B4 A1 A1) 58,486
Income tax expense Frisfif = (18,359)
Profit for the year FERFE 40,127
Other segment information ~ H 5 & ¥
Additions to non-current assets KB IETR BN A E 9,784 75,385 85,169
Depreciation and amortisation 78 [ # $5 (4,804) (3,774) (8,578)
Losses on disposal of property, — HEWE - ME LR E
plant and equipment, net FriSE 18 5 8 (63) - (63)

No analysis of segment assets and liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the
executive directors.

There is no single external client contributed more
than 10% to the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

RN EERARTESREDAE
ENBEDN WA BEZHZFOMN

REZE2018F12A31HILFEE - #
EmE—INEEFERAONSHAER
WEEEI10% A £ (2017 4F : £8E) -
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6 OTHER INCOME 6

HA A

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31HILEE

2018 2017

2018 & 20174

HK$’000 HK$°000

FETT FAET

Management fee income ERBRA 389 616
Interest income from bank deposits (Note) $R171F 2 A B U A (Ff5E) 13,397 877
Others HAh 482 914
14,268 2,407

Note: Total interest income on financial assets measured at
amortised cost for the year was HK$13,321,000 (2017:
HK$547,000) and interest income from financial assets at
FVPL was HK$76,000 (2017: HK$330,000).

7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7

M FR - REBEHERATGENSREE
"y 4 F B A A& 13,321,000 7T
(2017 % : 547,000 70) M RAF
B ABENEREENT ERA
/76,0007 7T (2017 £ : 330,0008
T e

Hit (B1B) WEFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILLEE
2018 2017

2018 F 2017 €
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETT

Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, HEWE - WEREZEFE

plant and equipment, net Wz (E18) F58 1 (63)
Gains on financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRNER
through profit or loss BEEENWE 76 681
Exchange losses, net b B 18 F 5 (8,977) (408)
(8,890) 210
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)

Doctors’ consultation fees

Cost of inventories and consumables
(Note 15)

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)

Rental expenses

Legal and professional fees

Listing expenses

Share option expenses to doctors and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

8 RRUHIIWNER

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HILEE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14) iz & & # 84 (M 5E 14) 471 177
R CIE=
— BT R 1,500 1,900
—IEFF R 203 171
WE - BERRETE
(fI5E13) 25,075 8,401
BEve 80,874 68,535
TEREMKA
(fi5E15) 75,150 39,773
BB @H B (:E9) 87,057 52,984
Gisheg =g 40,219 21,843
FERBEEBR 4,056 1,713
+FhEA 2,021 24,160
B B A N JER Y B8 R
EANAX 5,437 5,339

consultants
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

BERAAX (BEESHE)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILLEE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 £
HK$000 HK$°000
F & T FET
Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances T & - #& ~ {E41 MOEEL 78,474 47,750
Retirement benefit costs — defined RKEF K AR — FE B
contribution schemes (Note (a)) =& (BfsE@)) 4,731 2,682
Staff welfare and benefits BTREMEF=E 2,742 1,632
Share option expenses to employees and & 8 [ & S8 & A R =X
directors 1,110 920
87,057 52,984
Note: BgsE -

(a) Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution schemes

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The Group contributes a certain
percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group'’s
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap
of HK$1,500 per month effective since 1 June 2014, and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.

‘ 144 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERMERERERAF

RRAR A — TE BB (AT 8l

AR EE B B A R R B U
PEE MBI R & o B IR )R IRAR 7
FPEIMEE - AR EIZME AR E
BTEM—EBDLFELRER KR
FEERI BRE-TEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEFANFX(BEEEMS)
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's (a) EERTHARMS
emoluments
The remunerations of each director and the Chief AEBRESERITHABHRE
Executive Officer of the Group for the year ended 31 E2018F 12 A31 B ILFERFH
December 2018 are set out below: B E 5T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Group, the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAES(FRRARE AOHFHNRAANES)HAL
RENEBAXAIEAZAL OB
Employer's
contribution
toa
Allowances  retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit  Share-based
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme  payment
EZm
EImEK
R BUHE URGA
he 2 RERL  ROBRH  GROHR BEAGR Chl
HKS000  HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOD
FiEr Tz Fir FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr

Yearended 31 December 2018~ EZ 20185128318

LEE
Brecutie diectors HEZ
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis MEGRE

(“Dr. Dennis LAM") ([HrEmzs))

(Chief Bxecutive Officer) (B3 ()

(Note () - 1,200 - - 18 - 118
M. LI Xiaoting ("Ms. LI") FERRL(2%1))

(Note (i) (R Gi) - 1,200 - 756 18 - 1,974
M. L Chun Shan (Note () FHIG A () - 495 64 - - 3% 594
D LEE Yau Wing Vincent FRABE (B i)

(Note (i) 10 - = - - 1,852 2,09

Inceoenden non-executie diecos EUETEE

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam HEmEt 1 - - - - - 40
Dr. LI Kok Tung Donald ZEREE 40 - - - - - 240
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung SRELE 240 - - - - - 240
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong RERAE 40 - - - - - 240
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang 2ZRAT 0 - - - - - 40

1,440 2,895 64 756 36 1,887 1,078
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEFANFX(BEEEMS)
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (#)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's (a) EERTHARZMES &
emoluments (Continued)
The remunerations of each director and the Chief AEBRESERITHRABHRE
Executive Officer of the Group for the year ended 31 E2017F 12 A31 B IEFERFH
December 2017 are set out below: BME 50T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Group, the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HHTES g

AAT
Employer's
contribution
toa
Allowances  retirement
and benefits benefit  Share-based
Fees Salaries inkind scheme payment

B BE ROEA 4
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000

—L

Year ended 31 December 2017 BEWTENANALEE

Frecutive directors HiTEZ
Dr. Dennis LAM HIEHE (THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) (Note () (&) - 349 - 5 - 3,501
Ms. LI (Note (i) a0t () - 1,200 741 18 - 1,959
Mr. LI Chun Shan (Note (i) ZEWEE (M) - 484 - - 2 510
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Note (i)~ 24485 4 (ki) 12 - - - 1579 1,501

Independent non-executive directors — BUAHTEE

Dr. LAU Jonson Yiu-Nam AEmEL 12 - - - - 12
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald ZERES 12 - - - - 12
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung SRETE 12 - - - - 12
Mr. CHAN ChiLeong RE=%E 12 - - - - 12
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang 2RENT 12 - - - - 12

72 5,180 4 23 1,605 7,621
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’'s

emoluments (Continued)

Note:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

The remuneration of Dr. Dennis LAM shown in the
tables represents remuneration received and receivable
from the Group by him in his capacities as a director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and an ophthalmologist to the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same). Dr.
Dennis LAM has agreed to waive remunerations of
HK$4,800,000 (2017: nil) during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The remunerations of Ms. LI and Mr. LI Chun Shan
shown in the tables represent remuneration received
and receivable from the Group by them in their
capacities as directors of the Company and employees
to the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: same).

The remunerations of Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent
represent remunerations received and receivable from
the Group by him in his capacity as a director of the
Company since the appointment on 28 June 2017.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, Dr. LEE
Yau Wing Vincent received doctors’ consultation fees
of HK$17,179,000 (2017: HK$14,801,000). During
the year ended 31 December 2018, total share option
expenses to Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent amounted to
HK$1,852,000 (2017: HK$2,343,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
aggregate amounts of remuneration including

fees,

salaries, discretionary bonuses, allowances

and benefits in kind, employer’s contribution to a
retirement benefit scheme, share-based payment and
doctors’ consultation fees which were paid by the
Group to the directors were HK$24,257,000 (2017:
HK$23,186,000).

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent and Mr. LI Chun Shan were
appointed as the Company’s executive directors on 28
June 2017.

9

e BRRME

BERAAX (BEESHE)

(%)

(a)

EERITHRARMS (8

GEX

()  FRAPFTHIRIEREE £ R B S
HREZ=2018F 12 A31HLE
FEERARNRIESERITH
BEARAEERMELAD
U Ko 8 W A £5 [ A 5 B (2017
F AR c MIEHEEE R
BHWEHE2018F 128310
1E 4 [ #9 % B 4,800,0007% 7T
(20174 : #&)

iy THRMINFTLEIRFHELL
ERH R R EREZE2018
FNRANABLEFEERERRA
RIEERAEEEEE WK
JRE W 7 = [ 6 %57 B (2017 4F -
R o

iy FHEBENFTHIERS
20176 A28 HEZ TR E
BRAREEE R R ERASE
B 7 & B o R ELZ 20184 12
R31BLEFE THEELE
BB £2 % 517,179,000
7T (20174 : 14,801,0007%
JC) e MBI E 20184 12 A 31
AIEFE  BPRERELEN
R A £ 51,852,000
AT (2017 4 : 2,343,000 7%
JT) °

REZE2018F 12 A31H L5
AR EMRE SN 5
B (BEEE Fe BB
4 REREWEA - BERR
REFFTEER MR AR
DEERONRUREEZSE)
#24,257,000% 7T (2017 4F -
23,186,000 7T) °

THEBERETEZLUEER
201756 A28B ELZEAALXR
RIMITES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

9

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’'s

emoluments (Continued)

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam, Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald,
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung, Mr. CHAN Chi Leong
and Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang were appointed as the
Company’s independent non-executive directors on 19
October 2017.

No remunerations are paid or receivables in respect of
accepting office as director during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

No emoluments are paid or receivable in respect
of directors’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

Except as disclosed in Note (i) above, no other director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
retirement benefits, payments or benefits in respect of
termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any
payable (2017: nil). No consideration was provided
to or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (2017: nil).

There is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or controlled
body corporates and connected entities of such
directors during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
nil).

9

BERAAX (BEESHE)

(%)

(a)

EERITHRARMS (8

DEEmELE FEHRELE - FR
FEE BRESEERRLE
Z+2017F10 A 19BEZ T
ABRNRBYIFNITES -

REZE2018F12 A31 B ItHF
E HMESBEEMNESHREM
STk RIBNE (2017 6 - £8) o

REE2018F 12 A31 B ItHF
E - HMERESREEARAL
HM B AR SBATREMANEM
PR 7% T S2 A< sk FE UL B & (2017
Fm|m) o

Br ESCHIRE()FTIREE SN - RELE
2018F 12 A3 B IEFE - #E
HEMEEMEXRBBEEM
B (20174 « 4&) -

REZE2018F12 A31H I
B OMERKIESRERNE
EEESMBEIMNRELAR
RIEF) ~ (T FRKAEF IR
3 | ¥R R B9 B (< FRIA (2017 4F -
/) - MERESE SRR MM
FEoHRERMESE=F
BRI (201745 - &)

REZE2018F 12 A31BItHF
B BMEUNESHZEZES
FEBENBEEERATTAN
BER EERREMR S ZH
(20174 : ) o

NGB BEER T EAEBEER
B mMARTEEREFE
BB aEAEDRS AR
HZE2018F12A31HILFESF
RFEMEBEBDATENEKX
R LTHREH (2017 F 1 £) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest amongst the directors and employees in the
Group include three (2017: three) directors, Dr. LEE
Yau Wing Vincent, Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI (2017:
same), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above for the year ended 31 December
2018. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
as follows:

9

e BRRME

BERAAX (BEESHE)

(%)
(b) EEEEHFMAL

REZE2018F 12 A31HIEHF
E AEBEEEREEFNA
HEaTMALTEE= %(2017
FZR)ES(FHEELE
MIEE EE A R 222 4) (2017 4F -
R - BENFHNREE X
Z5E DT e REE20184F 12
A31HLEFEE ENHBTHME
ATHIFBNE S 0T

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31BLLEE
2018

2017
20174
HK$000
FETT

2018 FF
HK$'000
F# T

Wages, salaries, bonuses, and IE e e
allowances 1,009 1,122
Pension costs RIS AR 18 -
Share-based payments LARR 1 2 E R 89 15 50 1,980 2,342
3,007 3,464
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HMENLTHER :

#iE (8T)
1,000,001 L=

Emolument bands (in HK$)
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

Number of individuals
A

Year ended 31 December

HEZ12A31BLEE

2018
2018 &

2017
2017 €

1,500,000 7 7T 1 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8 TE
2,000,000% 7T 1 -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & =
2,500,000 7T - 1
2 2

gt
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e BRI

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(c) Senior management

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set forth below:

Emolument bands (in HK$) HENEE (BT)

BEERINHX (BIEEEMSE)

(#)

() SHhEEE
REZE2018F 12 A31BIEEE
EHEI>NEREREKE
R F ST T

Number of individuals
AE

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31B8LEE
2018 2017
2018 & 20174

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 B TE

1,500,000 7% 7T 1 -

2 2

10 FINANCE EXPENSES

Interest expense on borrowings B B

10 BiHHxX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831BLFEE
2018 2017
2017 4
HK$ 000
FAET

160 555

2018 F
HK$°000
TET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FBEHAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of REBZE2018F 12 A31HILEFE &
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits B ERHE R IR AT EFREFES
for the year ended 31 December 2018. 16.5% (2017 4F : 16.5%) T2 B4 -
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group REZE2018F 12 A31HIEFE - &
is 25% (2017: 25%) for the year ended 31 December 2018. EEFREMNBEARNNBERNEA25%

(2017 4F : 25%) °

Under the new Corporate Income Tax Law, corporate RBEFREMEHE  REBTMAK
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign investor SN R B A SR INE 1 37 2008
incorporated in Hong Kong for dividend which arises from FIRAVBERDOFBERESOR
profit of foreign investment enterprises earned after 1 BRI ZE 5% BN EIEHEH -

January 2008 at a tax rate of 5%.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated MRGE2ARERNBTELES
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BILLEE

2018 2017
2018 5 20174
HK$000 HK$°000
FHETT FEr
Current income tax BVERFT 15 4
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENER 8,302 9,300
— PRC enterprise income tax —HRE TS/ 10,459 9,189
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAFE (BEREE)
BETE (39) 241
Deferred income tax (Note 26) EAEFTIS L (M 5T 26) (127) (371)
Income tax expense Fri8fiF 2 18,595 18,359
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e BRI

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group

companies as follows:

11 FiEHEXw@)

7R 62 18 Bk P 1S 5 AR O A TR SR
ERRNEE QRN INEFORERFTE
BHERBENERNT -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831BLEE
2018 2017
20174
HK$ 000
FET

2018 F
HK$°000
FET

Profit before income tax B AT 1S B B ) 61,166 58,486
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate REARS AR FE

applicable to profits in respective BWEHB R ENTIE

jurisdictions 11,174 12,099
Tax effects of: Ty BENHBEE

Income not subject to tax RBWA (2,211) (138)

Expenses not deductible for taxation LIk

purpose 2,770 4,296

Tax losses not recognised AEROTEE B 6,669 1,585

Withholding tax on royalty income SR WA TENTL 397 276

(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BEEE)

BHETR (39) 241

Tax concession HEEE (165) -

Income tax expense FT 1S 25 i 2 18,595 18,359

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2018 was 18.3% (2017: 20.7%).

The decrease in weighted average applicable tax rate for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and

the PRC.

HE2018FE12A31BIEEEHM
HEFEEBHEA183% (2017 4F ¢
20.7%) ©

HZE2018F 12 A31 B IFFE & e
FHEBHRERD AR AEBRE
ERFRENHBATNRTEEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue.

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company during the year

_|_

e BRRME

12 ERER
(a) B

BREARBANZARREDF
BEARENMERADETER
Bt BETE -

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31BLLEE

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 &

FRARRAERFTEA
FEME B (T&T)

(HK$'000) 42,571 40,127
Weighted average number of BT EBRINE

ordinary shares in issue T8 1,022,274,585 769,287,977
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &R EARZF| (El) 4.16 5.22

Note:

(i) The earnings per share as presented above is calculated
using the weighted average number of 1,022,274,585
(2017: 769,287,977) ordinary shares deemed to be
in issue for the year ended 31 December 2018. In
determining the weighted average number of ordinary
shares deemed to be in issue, the bonus elements of
the shares issued in 2017 and 2018 as detailed in Note
21(a), 21(b) and 21(e), respectively, have been taken
into account since 1 January 2017.

GEE

iy LEERANEBHREMNDIZREZR
20185 12 A31H L FE®R
EE #77591,022,274,585 %
(20174 : 769,287,977 f%) &
BRMEFHEAE BT
BEE BITH L BAR N #EF
BHHEE ©H82017F1818
HBEF X 2017 F 2018 2 %
TR IELLE = R &
21(a) * 21(b) K2 21(e) T 2 Bl 5%
gt) o
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e BRI

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 BREF @
(b) Diluted (b) #8

EREERNTIREEE R
EEBMEBENNLTER WiEk
R ATIESNR T R AR A 0k
FHHETITE - RELE 2018
FNANBHLEFE AEHEA
B8 (2017F: —8H) A=
B EAY o

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group has one (2017: one)
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares.

RERAAREENEREMNS
ATFEROEE S EAR
AR [R) AR N AT RN TE AR R B
TTESNAEE -

For the pre-IPO share options, the number of shares
included as below is the number of shares that are
dilutive and would have been outstanding assuming
the completion of the share issue to the grantees.

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEEE

2018 2017
2018 & 20174

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company during the year

FARRAERTAA
FE5 B (T&7T)

(HK$'000) 42,571 40,127
Weighted average number of EEITE BRI S8

ordinary shares in issue 1,022,274,585 769,287,977
Adjustments for: HATEBEELAE

— impact of the pre-IPO share —BHRARBEAERE

option scheme B2 31,504,587 10,613,634

Weighted average number of ARG EEREERT T

ordinary shares for diluted eI T mREE

earnings per share 1,053,779,172 779,901,611
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) & R #5& Z | GB1l) 4.04 5.15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% BERRKHE

Office
Medical Leasehold furniture Computer Motor  Construction
equipment improvements  and fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress [E]

BENE  BOBER

ERRf %8  BRRE  EERR RE  ERIE it
#3000 #3000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 000 HK$000

At 1 January 2017 R17F1A18

Cost Mk 41632 21,640 3,078 233 1773 - 70457

Accumulated depreciation  Z317E (19.823) (16,401) (2,063) (1,717) (903) - (40,907)

Net book amount FAFE 21,809 5,239 1015 617 870 - 29,550
Year ended 31 December EZ2017512A318

2017 LEE

Opening net book amount  F41EEFE 21,809 5239 1,015 617 870 - 29,550

Additions HE 51,054 3376 871 1,536 - 724 84,051

Disposals HE (122) - - - - - (122)

Depreciation kS (5,078) 2,179 (514) (288) (38) - (8.401)

Currency translation IEHEZE

diferences 2883 40 57 61 37 1,063 4101

Closing net book amount ~ F REEF{E 70,506 6476 1429 1,926 565 282771 109,179
At31December 2017 R2017£12831R

Cost Bk 95,911 25,833 4103 4010 1,843 282771 159,977

Accumulated depreciation  Z3H17E (25,405) (19,357) (2,674) (2,084) (1,278) - (50,798)

Net book amount EREE 70,506 6476 1429 1,926 565 28277 109,179
Year ended 31 December 22018512318

2018 LEE

Opening net book amount 4B FE 70,506 6,476 1429 1926 565 28277 109,179

Additions TE 20333 8819 875 1,007 1,145 203 32,382

Disposals HE (191) (1,0m) - - - = (1,268)

Depreciation ik (10,554) (12,482) (753) (863) (423) - (25,075)

Transfer gz - 27,801 25 - - (28,053) -

Currency translation IMEREEE

differences (3,305) (832) @1 (85) (44) (427) (4734)

Closing net ook amount ~ KB EFE 76,789 28,705 1,762 1,985 1243 - 110484
At31December 2018 20185124318

Cost wA 111,904 59,084 5,092 4883 241 - 183,400
Accumulated depreciation  Z317% (35,115) (30379) (3:330) (2,858) (1,234) - (72,916)

Net book amount FEFE 76,789 28,705 1,762 1,985 1283 - 110,484
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense charged in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income is as follows:

13 ¥ BERSZE®

RiFE2RBRaRNRNTEERH
Bk

Year ended 31 December
HE12H31HLEE

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 £

HK$000 HK$'000

F T FET

Cost of revenue $HE KA 21,546 6,956
Administrative expenses THBF X 3,529 1,445
25,075 8,401

BERXEEBEUATEHE  HPAKH
RUEREETHARA :

Medical equipment includes the following amounts where
the Group is a lessee under finance leases:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILLEE

2018 2017

20184 2017 4F

HK$000 HK$°000

FET FEr

Cost-capitalised finance leases RA—EARERERS 6,970 4,240
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE (4,249) (3,105)
Net book amount REFE 2,721 1,135

The Group leases various medical equipment under non-
cancellable finance lease agreements. The lease terms are
5 years, and substantially all risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying assets have been transferred to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BFEEE
Total
st
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2017 ®2017F1H818
Cost %N 1,829
Accumulated amortisation RET R (422)
1,407
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZE2017F 128310 LLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFEE 1,407
Additions NE 1,118
Amortisation ] (177)
Currency translation differences INE R E =5 105
Closing net book amount FAREREFE 2,453
At 31 December 2017 M2017512H31H
Cost B AR 3,092
Accumulated amortisation R 5T (639)
2,453
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F 12 A31HILLEE
Opening net book amount FYIRMFE 2,453
Additions NE 2,003
Amortisation B (471)
Currency translation differences INEMEERE (158)
Closing net book amount FAREMFE 3,827
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H
Cost IB# 4,889
Accumulated amortisation EET (1,062)
3,827
Intangible assets mainly consist of computer software. BRVEAEFZBESHEAMG -
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 14 BREEE @)
Amortisation expense charged in the consolidated statement REra 2 EWREKRNREHEE R
of comprehensive income is as follows: i

Year ended 31 December
HE12H31HLEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cost of revenue SHE P AR 177 66
Administration expenses THBF X 294 111
471 177
15 INVENTORIES 15 FE
As at 31 December
MW12H31H8
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F&T
Pharmaceuticals and medical consumables %% & 82 B #E#4 8,501 6,305
Vision aid products WA EBE @ 644 568
9,145 6,873
The cost of inventories and consumables recognised as REZE2018F12A31HILFE - #E
expense and included in cost of revenue amounted to RAEBRUFTABEERNEANTERE
approximately HK$75,150,000 (2017: HK$39,773,000) for M BN 494 75,150,000 7T (2017 4F -
the year ended 31 December 2018. 39,773,000 7T) ©
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 16 ZREHEIHNEMITAE

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 %
HK$’000 HK$°000
Fi&T FET
Financial assets at amortised cost REH S RN S RVE B
— Trade receivables —B S RWRIE 6,259 7,692
— Deposits and other receivables — & RHE A EUGRIR 17,013 8,529
— Bank deposits with original maturity —RIEHBEBE=FAN
over three months RITIF 249,099 -
— Pledged bank deposits —BEHEFIRITER - 8,000
— Cash and cash equivalents - ReMREEEY 471,745 77,969
744,116 102,190
Financial assets at fair value through BATEGAEERN
profit or loss TREE
— Structured bank deposits — BRI 11,397 60
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R AT RN ERIAE
— Trade payables —E S EMNHIE 5,362 6,892
— Accruals and other payables —JEET B R K E A BT 508 28,374 45,737
— Amount due to a related party — JE — R B 7 3R 20 153
— Bank borrowings —RITE R = 8,000
— Finance lease liabilities —-@mEfHEaE 2,472 947
36,228 61,729
17 TRADE RECEIVABLES 17 EZEWFEE

As at 31 December

R12A318
2018 2017
2018 5 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade receivables =) &N 6,259 7,692
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their B 5 REWRIBNREE SR N TEME
fair values. & o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =2 — \E & 159 '



_|_

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17

The trade receivables are due when services are rendered
and goods are sold. As at 31 December 2018, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables based on due date and
invoice date was as follows:

g 5 EWRIE®
BHERRBERRERELEESY
W B) & B HA PR - 7220184 12 A 31
A ZZERFERINBEHREE
BEIRBREC D AT LN T

As at 31 December

MA12H31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
0-90 days 0ZE90H 5,624 7,151
91 - 180 days 91%&180H 226 234
Over 180 days HBi®180H 409 307
6,259 7,692

MR2018F12A31H FTEE S EIK
BRI ARBE (2017 4F - H8R)
ZEEHRETEER TEESHNSZSE
BYRP BEARRMABMAEE -

As at 31 December 2018, all the trade receivables balances
were not impaired (2017: same). These relate to a number
of independent clients, commercial companies and local
government to which no credit terms were granted.

AEEREABEEVHREERFINR
BETDAFERBERER  RAE
B 5 RUGRRER = REHEERRE -
BEEBEBRRENFRRNME3 D) -

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Details in
determining the loss allowance are set out in Note 3.1(b).

.5 8 R OB 0 B A (5 A T
s

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated
in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 4,077 5,986
Renminbi AR 2,182 1,706
6,259 7,692
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A EEmRME

18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18 &€  FANRERAEMERRE
RECEIVABLES 15

As at 31 December

MN12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Non-current FEENHA
Prepayments for property, plant and M - B RRE
equipment TEfT 5RIE 1,920 3,152
Rental deposits Heke 6,985 7,657
e 8305 ] 10,809
Current BN &R
Prepayments for inventories T F & HIE 26 733
Prepayments for rental expenses ENHEER 788 199
Prepayments for operating expenses TENEEER 3,280 1,797
Listing costs FHmEH - 5,806
Rental and other deposits e kAMES 3,544 647
Interest receivable JE W FI S 1,688 -
Other receivables H fth fE Y k18 4,574 -
Others Hth 222 225
PP 14122 ¢ 9,407 _
Total deposits, prepayments and other e FBNEIEREA
receivables B IEA T 23,027 20,216
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other e - TERFRIE KA fth B Y R IE B9 BR
receivables approximate their fair values. HEEAE RN FEES -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain e AR FRIEREMERFIETS
impaired assets. EREEE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is R|ERM ZRXEERRA LRE
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. HREWRIER N FE - RNEBEN EiF
The Group does not hold collateral as security. BEAERRIERERT -
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18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

18 &% - AAREREMERK
18 (48)
Be - BABARE MR EFIEN R
E{ETRIATEEHE

As at 31 December

MA12H31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 7,773 13,338
Renminbi AREE 15,254 6,878
23,027 20,216

19 BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY
OVER THREE MONTHS, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

(a) Bank deposits with original maturity over
three months

As at 31 December 2018, the weighted average
effective interest rate of the Group’s bank deposits
with original maturity over three months was 2.48%.

The Group's bank deposits with original maturity over
three months were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.

(b) Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged
to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group. As at 31 December 2017, deposits
amounting to HK$8,000,000 have been pledged to
secure short-term bank borrowings (Note 25).

19 REHEBEB=EANRITHE
o EEARTERRBAEER
REe%EY

(a) FEIHARB=18AMRT
B

MR2018F 12 A31H » "&EER
FHABB=EANERITER
HIIEFH BRI EF2.48% o

AEBERIPABR=TANH
RITFERTIABETTETE -

SEARITER

BRI NI EE FIRT
NS E T AE® —IETH
BWER - R2017F12 A 31
H - 17 78,000,000 7T T # 48
VARR{S 52 BRER1T1E 3k (FisE 25) o

(b)
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19 BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY
OVER THREE MONTHS, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

19

e BRRME

R BB=EANETHE
R CEABTERRBEESR
REEEY @

(0 RERBEEEEY
RekAeEEWHERIBA

A=

&8 A IA TR 2 & E R

BITER -

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Cash at banks (Note (i)) RITIH S (HEEa) 86,849 66,896
Cash on hand FHER® 449 1,063
Short-term bank deposits (Note (i) 55 BRSR 1717 3% (B RE (i) 384,447 10,010
471,745 77,969

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

ReReEEMHRATERE:

As at 31 December

Mm12H31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
United States Dollar (Note (iii)) 7t (M EE Gii)) 50,537 37
Hong Kong Dollar BT 406,015 57,657
Renminbi (Note (iii)) AR (B (i) 15,193 20,275
471,745 77,969
Notes: B 5
(i)  Cash at banks generates interest at prevailing market (i) RITRESNEZE2018F12 A
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2017: BTHIEFEEAMNE TR
0.01% to 0.35%) per annum during the year ended NF0.01%%E0.35% (2017
31 December 2018. F:001%%E0.35%) BT
MIHFEREH o
(i) As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rate (i)  M2018F12A31H 2 H
per annum on short-term bank deposits was 2.36% RITERANEBRFNER
(2017: 0.75%); short-term bank deposits have original 2.36%(20174F : 0.75%) : &
maturities of less than 3 months. BT ERNREEB A3 E
AT
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents of HK$65,361,000 (2017: (i) MA2018F 12 A31HEFENR
HK$17,468,000) were held in PRC as at 31 December WHEENHEE MRS EEY
2018 and were subject to local exchange control /465,361,000 7T (2017 4F :

regulations. Those local exchange control regulations
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through normal dividends.

17468000/%7z) ° % ERIE
2E H HNE E FIE AR IRR o 7%
=*é“i1ﬂ9\\[%%u/£%ﬁﬁa¢
BFE &S MLABR &I - MEITF &
DHELRI
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20
PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss:

o debt investments that do not qualify for measurement

at either amortised cost or FVOCI.

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the
following:

BAVEFABRSNEREE

AEED B TIRAFEFABRA
TREE

s TAERBREBERALEBRF
B ARt 2EBAGFENE
BHIRE -

BHEATFEFABSFENSRE
EBETIEA:

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017

2018 & 2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Unlisted investments: FELMIRE -
Structured bank deposits (Note) EREIERITE R (5

11,397 60

Note: The Group invested in structured bank deposits issued by
major state-owned banks in the PRC, with fixed maturities
and floating interest rates. The fair values of the structured
bank deposits are based on the redeemable amounts as at
the year end date.

‘ 164 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERMERERERAF

M AEEKERTRHEZEARITE
1TH) 75 B E 2 H) B NOF B A R 45
BIRTER - BB ERITERD
RFESRBERFREHOA]EE
THFE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

During the year, the movements in financial assets at FVPL
were as follows:

e BRRME I

BAVEFABRSNEREE

()
Py RATESABRNSREE
MEBHMT :

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 4F

HK$000 HK$°000

FE&T FET

At 1 January n1B1H 60 17,437

Addition NE 16,504 27,706

Disposal & (4,791) (46,206)
Change in fair value recognised in RIBR RN A FE

profit or loss (Note 7) (BFsx7) 76 681

Exchange difference PE H ZRE (452) 442

At 31 December M12H31H 11,397 60

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying value of financial assets at FVPL (2017: same).

There are no commitment or contingent liabilities relating
to the Group’s interests in the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (2017: same).

RESEY  FXEERRRERAF
Bf ABGZMEREEMNREE (2017
F R -

4 B B R 2 T 2T AR 2 0

TREETOEDEBOAZERIR
BB (20174 - 1BE) -
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21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 BA&

Number of Nominal value

ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
ZEBREE TEREE
‘000 HK$°000
F A FHET
Authorised: VERE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1H1H 50 387
Increase in authorised share capital & RBEE LT
by recapitalisation &% A N (a) 7,999,950 799,613
At 31 December 2017, 1 January M20179F 128318 -
2018 and 31 December 2018 2018F 1 A1B K&
2018412 A31H 8,000,000 800,000
Issued and paid: BEITREE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1H1H 2 16
Increase in number of shares on ERERERNDEE
recapitalisation 0 (a) 154 -
Proceeds from shares issued to m#&IEEB AR AR
C-MER Group Limited BITHRD B PTG 3K
1A (b) 178 17
Proceeds from shares issued to MERAREERNR
pre-IPO investors BEBITROBFT
(SO (0) and (d) 37 4
(c) £z (d)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F 12 A31B R
1 January 2018 20181 H1H 371 37
Capitalisation of share premium &1 % B &AM (e) 802,629 80,263
Issuance of shares upon listing B EITRG ) 197,000 19,700
Issuance of shares upon exercise of — 1T{# R 5B AL ik #E 14
over-allotment options BT (9) 29,550 2,955
Issuance of shares upon exercise of 171 & /X A E A
pre-IPO share options BRERETRGD 24 5,562 556
At 31 December 2018 M 2018F 12 A31H 1,035,112 103,511
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 18
May 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased by HK$800,000,000 by the creation of
8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. The
Company repurchased and cancelled the 2,000 existing
issued shares of US$1 each and issued 156,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each to the shareholder in exchange. The authorised
share capital of US$50,000 of US$1 each was cancelled.

Pursuant to directors’ resolutions passed on 18 May 2017
and 6 June 2017, 167,000 and 11,137 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each, respectively, were issued and allotted to C-MER
Group Limited at par value.

On 30 May 2017, the Company entered into the Pre-IPO
Tranche A Subscription Agreements with certain investors
(“Pre-IPO Tranche A Investors”). A total of 14,851 ordinary
shares (“Pre-IPO Tranche A Shares) of HK$0.1 each were
allotted and issued to the Pre-IPO Tranche A Investors at an
aggregated cash consideration of HK$40,000,000.

Other than Mr. LAM Tak Kwan, who is a close family
member of a director and Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam, who is
an independent non-executive director of the Company, the
remaining Pre-IPO Tranche A Investors are independent third
parties. All subscription consideration has been received in
cash.

On 6 June 2017, the Company entered into the Pre-IPO
Tranche B Subscription Agreements with certain investors
(“Pre-IPO Tranche B Corporate Investors”). A total of 22,277
ordinary shares (“Pre-IPO Tranche B Shares”) of HK$0.1
each were allotted and issued to the Pre-IPO Tranche B
Corporate Investors at an aggregated cash consideration of
HK$102,000,000.

All investors under the Pre-IPO Tranche B Subscription
Agreements are independent third parties. All subscription
consideration has been received in cash.

21

_|_

e BRRME

B AR ()
3 -

(@ WEMR2017F5A18ARBEN
BERBR AQAEHER
8,000,000,000 % E L E(E0.1/5TH
AR - 1 A05% T A 48 800,000,000
FEIT o NN A K A 52,000 A%
BRAEAE1ZETHRBEFHTRG -
I 1A f% 3R % 77 156,000 % 5 P& E
0.1BITHBRMIERRIR - GREME
132 JC B 0K E IR AN 50,000 3 7T 2 4%
T8 o

(b) ABIEHR2017F5718H k201746
AeABMAMEERER  ARQA
REHENFBEEER AR DB
17 M B % 167,000 & 11,137 8 &
MREEO.1 BT L @A -

(© M2017%45H30H ' ARQAREETF
BEE(BERAHAEEMALRE
EDFNERARAEEMAILRE
BE - ARAREXAREEMNA
HIEEERE REITE 14,851 0%
FREEIBTHNEER((EAXA
FEEMARKRN] BRESNE
740,000,000 7 7T °

BB E: (—REFENLMR) &
BmmELE (ARRNBUIFNTE
2 BRTEERQFMEESHAL
REZFEHRBILE=T - IERE
REC AR ST AYER -

(d M2017F6A6H ARrFHEET
BREE((HEXAHEERBHLE
BEEDNE XA MEERBH
REDHE ARAFARNBERNAREE
RIBEL BRI EERE R FETEH
22,277 RERE{EC.1 BT LB
(TBEXRAMEEMBIRMD]) - 2
154K {E4102,000,000 7T °

BERARBEESABURERRET

WA EREELDRBILE=T7
ERBRED AR ST AYER -
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21

22

23

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(e) Pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 13
December 2017, conditional on the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the listing of
the Company, the directors were authorised to issue a total
of 802,628,735 shares by way of capitalisation of the sum of
HK$80,262,874 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company upon listing. Such capitalisation
issue has been completed on 15 January 2018.

(f) On 15 January 2018, the shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. In connection with the listing, the Company issued
197,000,000 shares at a price of HK$2.9 each for a gross
proceed of HK$571,300,000.

(g)  Pursuant to the International Underwriting Agreement dated
11 January 2018, the Company granted the over-allotment
option to China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited,
the international underwriter of the global offering, in its
discretion to require the Company to allot and issue up to
29,550,000 additional shares. The over-allotment option was
fully exercised on 18 January 2018 and the Company issued
29,550,000 additional shares at a price of HK$2.9 each for a
gross proceed of HK$85,695,000 at the closing date on 29
January 2018.

STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE

The balance represents statutory surplus reserve. In
accordance with articles of association of certain subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC, the subsidiary is required to transfer
10% of the profit after taxation prepared in accordance
with PRC accounting standards to the statutory reserve until
the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
Such reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred and
to increase share capital.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company approved and adopted the pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 28 June
2017. Share options were granted in 2017 to incentify
the Company’s certain directors, senior management,
ophthalmologists, physicians, employees and consultants.

21

22

23
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() RIEMN2017F12R13BBEBAIKR
RRBR FARAIRM & EKR
EARQNA EWMmERBHERE &
EREREFBEA B LEWMEAR
ARARHOEEROEREBETAH
80,262,874 L T & A HEH 1T
802,628,735 ik 17 - BRI A AL 3
TEMR 20185 1 A 15 HEMK °

(H  M2018F1A15H AR AR
EEBMAERZAER AR ER LT -
HETME ARARDIEER2.9E
JTHI{E 4% %17 197,000,000 AR A% 17 -
TS FIR A 5E /3 571,300,000 8 7T

(99 WRIEBHA2018F1A1MBEHEH
BRERE  AAARAEREEN
BRBHEEEEES (B8 AR
NER L BERRE  BEeED
AMBEERARARERETRS
29,550,000 & BB SN I 15 © PR 2018 4F
1R18H  MEERER EEHIT
£ M HR2018F1 29 B W& IF B
B ARRIBIEER2.9BITHER
¥ 4729,550,000 L BB SMNRS 1 - BT 1S
SR IE 4858 /5 85,695,000 58 7T

EERGEE
BRERIBLICRRFHE - REET
R B M B A R AR E
RAR - BREKELQRZAKLRRT
SRFERRBE AR BIL B 10% &t
REERES BEERERETIMR
RE50% 73 1E © 3% b 2 B AR R
B BB SR IR

IR RERAAR

BEN2017F 6 A28 Bi@BHARE R
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e BRRME

R RERNAR @

TREERAER2EEFAENE X
AEEEFBRETEE T RENA
NEEREFBAREZ2018F &
2017F 12 A3 B L FENEREHRK
BE)

23 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 23

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
held by eligible participants and movements in such holdings
in relation thereto during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017:

Number of share options '000

BRESETH
Exercised
Exercise At during  Forfeited At31
price per 1 January the year during  December
Grant date Expiry date share  MNote 2018  (Note(v)) the year 2018
R2018F FRETE R2018E
BL RS &% B & BRTHEE 118 (M) FRERK 12A318
HKS
27
1 April 2017 15 July 2021 0.1 0 10,570 (5,562) - 5,008
017F4F18 2021E7A15H
1 April 2017 31 March 2022 0.1 i 10,570 - - 10,570
217F4R18 202F3A31H
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 0.1 i 10,570 - - 10,570
20174818 2023F3A31H
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 1.0 0 11,048 - (148) 10,900
017F4F18 2023%3A31H
1 April 2017 31 March 2027 1.0 0 742 - - 742
217F4R18 2027F3A31H
1 September 2017 31 October 2021 0.1 (il 500 - - 500
201759718 2021108318
1 September 2017 31 October 2022 0.1 (i) 500 - - 500
2017%F9F 18 202F10A31H
1 September 2017 31 October 2023 0.1 (il 500 - - 500
2017F9A18 2023F10A31H
1 September 2017 31 December 2021 0.1 (il 367 - (129) 238
201759718 2021E 128318
1 September 2017 31 December 2022 0.1 (i) 167 - - 167
2017%F9F 18 202F12831H
1 September 2017 31 December 2023 0.1 (il 166 - - 166
2017F9A18 2023F12A31H
1 September 2017 30 May 2022 0.1 (il 167 - - 167
201759818 202254308
1 September 2017 30 May 2023 0.1 (il 167 - - 167
2017%F9F 18 2023%E5A30H
1 September 2017 30 May 2024 0.1 (il 166 - - 166
2017F9A18 2024F5A30H
1 September 2017 31 August 2023 1.0 (il 121 - - 121
201759818 202358 A31H
16 October 2017 30 November 2021 0.1 (iif) 122 - - 122
2017F10A16H 202111 A30H
16 October 2017 30 November 2022 0.1 (i) 122 - - 122
2017F10716H 20211 A30H
16 October 2017 30 November 2023 0.1 (i) 122 - - 122
2017F 108168 2023F 114308
46,687 (5,562) (277) 40,848
Number of option exercisable  FAF A AT 47 {2 ]
at year end e EE 5,008
Weighted average METHTER
exercise price (HKS) (Br) 033 0.10 0.58 0.36 0.10
Weighted average remaining I3 T4 4]
contractual life (years) EH(4F) 3.98
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23 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 23 URHBAEBRNSR@

Number of share options '000

BIREHE TR

Granted
Exercise At during Forfeited At 31
price per 1 January the year during  December
Grant date Expiry date Note 2017 (Note (v)) the year 2017
R2017F FRERH R20174
e A B A 1818 12A318
1 April 2017 15 July 2021 0.1 0 - 10,570 - 10,570
2174818 20217 A 150
1 April 2017 31 March 2022 0.1 i - 10,570 - 10,570
20174818 202€3A31H
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 0.1 0 - 10,570 - 10,570
017F4F18 2023%3A31H
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 1.0 0 - 11,126 (78) 11,048
2174818 2023F3A31H
1 April 2017 31 March 2027 1.0 i - 742 - 742
20174818 2027€3A31H
1 September 2017 31 October 2021 0.1 (i) - 500 - 500
2017F9F 18 202110 A31H
1 September 2017 31 October 2022 0.1 (ii) - 500 - 500
2017F9A18 202%10A31H
1 September 2017 31 October 2023 0.1 (ii) - 500 - 500
2017F9A18 2023F10A31H
1 September 2017 31 December 2021 0.1 (i) - 367 - 367
2017F9F 18 202112 A31H
1 September 2017 31 December 2022 0.1 (ii) - 167 - 167
2017F9A18 2025124318
1 September 2017 31 December 2023 0.1 (ii) - 166 - 166
2017F9A18 2023F12A31H
1 September 2017 30 May 2022 0.1 (i) - 167 - 167
2017F9F18 2022554308
1 September 2017 30 May 2023 0.1 (ii) - 167 - 167
2017%F9F 18 2023F5A30H
1 September 2017 30 May 2024 0.1 (il - 166 - 166
2017F9A18 2024E5H30H
1 September 2017 31 August 2023 1.0 (i) - 121 - 121
2017F9F 18 2023%8A31H
16 October 2017 30 November 2021 0.1 (i) - 122 - 122
2017F 107168 2021E 114308
16 October 2017 30 November 2022 0.1 (i) - 122 - 122
2017F 108161 202F11A30H
16 October 2017 30 November 2023 0.1 (i) - 122 - 122
2017F10R16H 2023F 11 A30H
- 46,765 (78) 46,687
Number of option exercisable 7% 2] 177
at year end BREYA
Weighted average METHTRE
exercise price (HKS) (B7) - 033 1.00 033
Weighted average remaining ST % T A4
contractual life (years) FH(F) 481
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23 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(0

On 1 April 2017, 43,578,000 options were granted to a total
of 131 grantees, which include certain ophthalmologists,
physicians, employees and executive directors.

The options are vested over periods of one to five years.
The vesting of the pre-IPO share options granted to the
ophthalmologists and certain employees is subject to
performance targets in terms of revenue generated during
the vesting periods. No performance condition exists for the
consultants, remaining employees and executive directors
who shall remain in their engagement, employment or office
over the vesting periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option ranges from HK$0.1 to
HK$1.0. Once vested, the options remain exercisable for
periods of three to five years. All unexercised pre-IPO share
options will lapse by the end of the exercise periods or upon
the cessation of employment of the grantees under the
service condition.

On 1 September 2017, 2,821,000 options were granted to
a total of eight grantees, which include certain consultants,
employees and an ophthalmologist of the Group.

The options are vested over periods of one to three years.
The vesting of the options granted to the ophthalmologist is
subject to performance target in terms of revenue generated
by the grantee during the vesting periods. No performance
condition exists for the consultants and employees who shall
remain in their engagement or employment over the vesting
periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option ranges from HK$0.1 to
HK$1.0. Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a
period of three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options
will lapse by the end of the exercise periods or upon the
cessation of employment of the grantees under the service
condition.

+

e BRRME

23 URHBAEBNSR®E

MEE

() M2017F481H WA H£131H%E
BABEETERREE &
BB R#ITESE) ¥ 43,578,000 19
FE R -

BRERBHA EZE0F -BBER
FTREMBENETEENE XA
HEMBREARRBMHEMES
WAREGEBIRRR - SRR -
BTEERATEFTEREXE
fiRfF - MEENEBMAANRR
PRAGRITSHE - SEREIE -

FHERENTEENF0NBLE
1.087T . —BRE  BREAR=
ERFHAAITE - IBERITER
BR B AR O S R 1T R
R IR R AR A R 1 LB AR
ANER -

(i) M2017F981H  MAH*N\LE
BRA(BEAEEETHER - EE
MR RIS A) % 2,821,000 17 B I%
1 o

BRESEHA EZE=F -BBERX
FTREBENBREAY RSB HRE
ARAMEEBRANZEBERRR -
HRERLEEWERERE G
i 1% % 1 55 B8 B R B A1 4% R AR 7% 1%
HEBREE

BOBERENTEENF0IELE
1087 —BRE  BREAR=
FHEATE - ABERITENER
N EE R BRESRITER R
IR IR RS G A5 LB AR AR
KX e

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =2 — \E & 171 '



_|_

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

23 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) On 16 October 2017, 366,000 options were granted to an (iii)
employee of the Group.

The options are vested over periods of one to three years.
The grantee shall remain in employment over the vesting
periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$0.1. Once vested,
the options remain exercisable for a period of three years. All
unexercised pre-IPO share options will lapse by the end of the
exercise periods or upon the cessation of employment of the
grantee.

(iv)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the fair values of (iv)
the pre-IPO share options granted were calculated using the
binomial option pricing model and subject to a number of
assumptions and with regard to the limitation of the model.
The fair value of the pre-IPO share options granted and the
significant input to the model are summarised as below:

23 URHBAEBNSR®E

ME ()

R2017F 10816 H » A — &A%
[E /& B #% 1 366,000 17 BE AL AE -

BRERBBHMA —ZE2=F - AKA
AN 5B AR R IR IR 2 0& -

BOBRENITEER0IET - —
ERE BRETR=FHEAT
EoMBRITENERAFEEH
BRESRITEHRINFLER
ES N S S

HZE2017F12A318BEFE - Fr
BEMEA HEEERENA
TFEDER-ZIEAAEEERIE
THETEAREZEBRILTERE
RAE RS - T H A E X AR
EAERENATERRANER
AT ¢

2017
2017 4

Fair value of pre-IPO share options granted (HK$'000) It E R A AREER
EhEN AT E(FET) 17,179
Risk-free rate A [ ) 1.01-1.58%
Expected volatility T8 HA R 08 47.31-53.15%
Dividend yield iR B = 0.19-0.29%
Expected option life (years) TEHIRE AR R B () 4-8
The expected volatility was determined based on the I8 HA K 0@ JY AR 5 A AR {E B A &2 [ ]
historical volatility of the share prices of publicly listed BB AR EHTAAREBHES
companies which are considered comparable with the Group. EIBHEE ©
(v)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, approximately (v B ZE=2018F12A31BILFE -
5,562,000 shares (2017: nil) were issued upon exercise of KRR P EREETEERITY
share options. The weighted average share price at the date 5,562,000 & & fn (2017 4 : &) o %
of exercise was HK$5.44 (2017: not applicable). T8 B HAEY hnE S AR (B /2 5.44 78
TL (2017 % « F@EA) °
(vi)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, share-based (i) B ZE2018F12A31BILEE A

payment expenses of approximately HK$6,547,000 (2017:
HK$6,259,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in relation to the pre-
IPO share options.
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e BRRME

24 DIVIDENDS 24 BB

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831BLLEE
2018 2017
2017 %
HK$°000
FET

2018 &
HK$'000
FET

EE N B T A
2.0l (B =EG)

BEIR&EN FIERAR
B9 A% B (B R i) -

Final dividend, proposed, of HK2.0 cents
per ordinary share (Note (i)

Dividends declared and paid to the
controlling shareholder (Note (ii))

20,702 -

100,000

Notes:

(0

(ii)

At a board meeting held on 26 March 2019, the directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents
per ordinary share, totalling approximately HK$20,702,000.
The dividend was not reflected as dividend payable in these
consolidated financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31
December 2019 after receiving the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to a directors’ resolution dated 30 September 2017,
the Company declared a dividend of HK$100,000,000 to
C-MER Group Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Such dividend has been settled through cash and
the current account with Dr. Dennis LAM.

R2019F3 A26 B ETHEEES S
L EBEEZEZRNREREER
@Ak 2.0810 - 4 #£4920,702,000
B ZREYERAEREHH
HEPRBRAEMERES - HEBRE
EREEBFERSG CESKRRIER
R AE E2019F 12 A31HIEF
EMREBAEF SR -

RIE BB AR2017F9A308K
EFRFIR ARAEMAER
BRRAEBEHERAFDZTIRKS
100,000,000 7T - ZREENRE
K F @ARIIR B A ) RBRAE A ©
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e BRI

25 BORROWINGS

25

(N

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Non-current FERE
_finance lease liabilities . RAHEERE M8 . 065
Current TRE
Bank borrowings RITIENK - 8,000
Finance lease liabilities MEHERRE 724 282
UV, 724 ! 8,282
Total borrowings fERARER 2,472 8,947
(a) Borrowings (a) &
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRAOWHAT

Non-current
Finance lease liabilities due for

FERE

R—FRIHEENRE

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
2017 %
HK$000
FET

2018 FF
HK$'000
FET

repayment after one year HEAE 1,748 665
Current E
Bank borrowings due for repayment 7 —F R EIHIE ERIRTT

within one year which contains BR(BEEEREE

repayment on demand clauses &) - 8,000
Finance lease liabilities due for R—FANIRHEENRE

repayment within one year HEAR 724 282

724 8,282

As at 31 December 2017, bank borrowings were
secured by pledged bank deposits of the Group of

HK$8,000,000 (Note 19).
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25 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a) Borrowings (Continued)

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s
borrowings by type and currency is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

25 fER@®)
(a) BB

AEBEFROEREREARNR
BT

As at 31 December
Mm12AH31H
2018 2017

2018 F 2017 €
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Hong Kong Dollar at floating rates 787t » ¥ 8 F| =& - 8,000
Hong Kong Dollar at fixed rates BT - BEF & 2,472 947
2,472 8,947

An analysis of the Group’s effective interest rates per

annum is as follows:

AEBNERFEMESFAT

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017

2018 & 2017 €

Hong Kong Dollar

% %

BT 2.9 2.17

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their

fair values.

AR REERE QR FERE
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25 BORROWINGS (Continued) 25 fER @)
(b) Finance lease liabilities (b) MEHEEE
The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the lessor MASLEEEREERE  BIHE
in the event of default of the lease liabilities by the EEEMRENRKELHEA -
Group.

As at 31 December

MN12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities — MEREAEBE -
minimum lease payments REREMNK
No later than 1 year TR —F 782 305
Later than 1 year and no later —FERTERASF
than 5 years 1,815 686
2,597 991
Future finance charges on BMERENAREREER
finance leases (125) (44)
Present value of financial lease FBEHEEBENERE
liabilities 2,472 947
The present value of finance RmEHEEENRENT
lease liabilities is as follows:
No later than 1 year TRR—F 724 282
Later than 1 year and no later —FRETNERATF
than 5 years 1,748 665
2,472 947
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 26

The net movement on deferred income tax account is as
follows:

e BRRME

IEAEFR G B

EEFTISHARE 2FFEMT

Total

et

HK$’000

FAET

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1H818 549
Credited to the consolidated statement of FFASRAEZENER

comprehensive income 371

At 31 December 2017 A2017F 128318 920
Credited to the consolidated statement of FFALRAEZEWER

comprehensive income 127

At 31 December 2018 A2018F 12 A31H 1,047

The gross movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as
follows:

FRBEERSHEE,(AFE) BN
BE ORI AR —HRKEERAN G
ERIKEH) I

Decelerated/
(accelerated)  Share-based
Deferred income tax tax payment
assets/(liabilities) depreciation reserve Tax losses
WE/(NE) LRGBER
ELFMEHEE/ (BR) REME N RREE BIEEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 H2017F1818 152 - 397 549
(Charged)/credited to the NN AL Gt
consolidated statement of (08) /5t A
comprehensive income (237) 947 (339) 371
At 31 December 2017 H2017%12831A8 (85) 947 58 920
(Charged)/credited to the REEE2ERER
consolidated statement of (3088) /3t A
comprehensive income (416) 601 (58) 127
At 31 December 2018 H2018% 128311 (501) 1,548 - 1,047

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward purposes only to the extent that realisation of the
related tax benefits through future taxable profit is probable.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has not recognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$33,014,000 (2017: HK$6,338,000). These tax
losses will expire within five years.

BEMSHEETEREENTRIEE
ERESR + W0 LA ] B2 45 R R SR E AR B A
HERBEHEFEEBR - 712018
F12A31H  AEEWERRFTH
T8 [§5#8 33,014,000 7T (2017 4F -
6,338,000 ) ERELEFTSTHEE °
ZEREBESERATANER -
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26

27

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities
of approximately HK$3,254,000 (2017: HK$1,914,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding taxation that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$65,073,000 (2017:
HK$38,287,000), as the directors considered that the timing
of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and the related temporary difference will not be
reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable future.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables, based on invoice date, were aged as
follows:

26

27

EERESH @
MN2018F 12 A318,  HRNEERA
RSB R A E R =AM E
TR EES TSR A R RER
KA B EURE K - B R 5 Bk
B Ff /&8 /& 7] K BEE 15 8 7 49 65,073,000
77T (2017 4 : 38,287,000 7T) &
NEENHERELCHSEHRAED
3,254,000 7T (2017 4 : 1,914,000
BIT) o

B RARE

R E B2 500 E 5 e HURE R
mF -

As at 31 December

W12 H31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
0-30 days 0Z&30H 5,193 6,887
31 -60 days 312 60H 160 4
61— 90 days 61Z290H 3 1
Over 90 days BB 90 H 6 -
5,362 6,892

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in
the following currencies:

B RNFRENKREENZEATER

5HE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 1,983 4,928
United States Dollar E - 11
Renminbi AR 3,379 1,953
5,362 6,892

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their
fair values.

o IR

‘ 178 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERMERERERAF

SN FIRM R EEE QAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements +
A EEmRME

28 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 EEARHEMENRIE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Accruals for employee benefits EEFE T E 9,480 5,165
Accruals for operating expenses JEET & B F X 6,684 4,982
Accruals for listing expenses Bt ETmER 3,591 9,819
Payables for doctors’ consultation fees ERELEDSE 9,532 8,847
Receipts in advance B W kA = 2,894
Contract liabilities aHEE 3,789 -
Payables for property, plant and JERTYIZE - BB KRR
equipment KIE 7,526 20,135
Others H A, 1,041 1,954
Total accruals and other payables FERT B FR I H b FE < 3B
il 41,643 53,796

As at As at

31 December 1 January
2018 2018

R 2018 F 2018 4F
12831H 1H1H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Contract liabilities — advanced payments A %BE—-BEZPWEH

received from clients IEEREN 3,789 -
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December REZE2018F12A3MBIEFE®R
2018 that was included in the contract liabilities balance at M= GEAFVENBEER) B
the beginning of the year amounted to HK$2,894,000. 2,894,000/ 7T °
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are JEET B R R E MR FRIENREE T
denominated in the following currencies: BUATEREHE

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 14,961 21,469
Renminbi AR 23,762 29,544
United States Dollar E 2,920 2,783
41,643 53,796

The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their H

fi FE A BB MY AR EI{E S H A F(EAE

4.

T

fair values.

of
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash

generated from operations:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REREER
(a) BEXBMERE

B B 1S B A B B B AR &R B PR
BRLFENEK

29

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLFEE
2018 2017
2017 £
HK$°000
FHET

2018 &
HK$’000
F#E T

Profit before income tax B P15 A A1 A1 61,166 58,486
Adjustments for: AT ESEEL FHEE
Amortisation of intangible assets & E#E S (5 14)

(Note 14) 471 177
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERBETE

and equipment (Note 13) (fF5E13) 25,075 8,401
(Gains)/losses on disposal of HEME - BE MR E

property, plant and equipment, FT1s (Weas) /BB F58

net (Note 7) (Mt3%7) (11) 63
Gains on financial assets at fair B AT EF ABER

value through profit or loss LREEEEN NG

(Note 7) (zE7) (76) (681)
Share-based payment expenses DARS 17 4 B 89 1~ 3%

(Note 23) 7 sz (FftEE23) 6,547 6,259
Finance income (Note 6) R N T)) (13,397) (877)
Finance expenses (Note 10) 5 H X (FIFE10) 160 555

79,935 72,383
Changes in working capital: EEEEE:
Inventories rE (2,502) (4,406)
Trade receivables =) e 1,321 (3,130)
Deposits, prepayments and other  ¥&2& ~ TEf 5RIE K E Ab

receivables FE UL FRIE (3,671) (2,681)
Trade payables 25N FRIE (1,367) 3,666
Accruals and other payables JERT & A M E b FES FRE (10,763) 15,352
Balances with related parties Ei 23 Bt 5 O A5 AR (130) 1,519

Cash generated from operations KEMBRE 62,823 82,703
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

29

_|_

e BRRME

BHEREBER &)

(b) HEYX BMERRERS
£ Q1]
RisABESHERT HEY
¥ RERBENFTSREAE:

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31BLLEE

2018 2017
20184 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHETT FET
Total net book amounts MRAREFE 1,268 122
Less: net book amounts of leasehold & : I TR BEHTH &
improvements disposed on revision WHEEMEEED
of reinstatement provision BREFE (1,077) -
191 122
Gain/(losses) on disposal of property, &% « BE LREE
plant and equipment, net W, (E518) 5458 11 (63)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BE K& E
plant and equipment Fir {5 3/ 38 202 59

(c) Significant non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2018, share-
based payment expenses of HK$6,547,000 were
recognised (Note 23).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, share-
based payment expenses of HK$6,259,000 were
recognised (Note 23). Dividends of HK$100,000,000
were declared and HK$34,613,000 were offset against
amount due from a director and shareholder.

() EXFBREXS

REE2018F 12 A31 B IEHF
E o FER T 6,547,000 7T A IR
HAEEROMNERFES (FiiE23) -

REZE2017F 128318 IEF
o #ER 76,259,000 7T LA
Bt & 5 e 3B 2 (B 5%
23) » & £ 100,000,000 T E
FER ° 134,613,000 L E &
HEW —BRE B RREIA -
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e BRI

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

29 BEREER )
d BEZBELENEENYER

Liabilities from financing activities

REETHELNAR

Amounts

due to

Amount shareholders

Finance due to and

Bank lease a related directors,
borrowings [ELTIE party net Total

MERE Eif—% EFRRR
|ITER 88 BEINE EENEFE @zt
HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FHET FET
At 1January 2017  R2017F1818 11,144 7,379 10,341 10,494 39,358
Cash flows Bem (3,144) (6,432) (10,719 (10,810) (31,105)
Exchange difference  [EXZ% - - 378 316 694
At 31 December 2017 742017F 128318 8,000 947 - - 8,947
Cash flows Ren (8,000) (703) - - (8,703)
Non-cash movement ~ 3E3R & & - 2,228 - - 2,228
At 31 December 2018 4201812 8318 - 2,472 - - 2,472
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e BRRME

30 COMMITMENTS 30 AIE
(a) Capital commitments () EBEXREE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RERDETNERERBAEE
end of the year but not recognised as liabilities is as HEBEREARAENT :
follows:

(b)

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Property, plant and equipment W BRERRE 456 9,523
Operating lease commitments (b) REHEEHRIE
The Group leases various clinics, hospitals, office AEERBAAHEL2HE
premises and staff quarters under non-cancellable WEEEZEZE - Bk - A
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are EMEREIBE - HEBNT
between one and ten years, and the majority of lease —FE2+F BRZHEEW
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease FEREEBRAIEMESR -
period at market rate. At 31 December 2018, the 2018512 A31 A REERK
Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments TAHHEEEREETHRE
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: RERAENREBNOT :

As at 31 December

MN12A31H
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FrET
Not later than one year TER—F 31,590 36,986

Later than one year and not later ~ —F & ETERRF

than five years 62,281 62,313
Later than five years AFLAE 52,670 42,787
146,541 142,086

gt
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e BRI

31

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

31 BBAXRS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the M— A B NEESEEESN S -7
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or NS TER G R EEARAKRER
exercise significant influence over the other party in making EAFEN AEFTHREBE@E -
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered WEFZHLAREHNTHASTAZE
to be related if they are subject to common control or RIEE 75 TR AR BB BE s -

common significant influence.

The Group is controlled by C-MER Group Limited MN2018F 128310 AEEXHK
(incorporated in the BVI), the ultimate holding company, TRARFEHEEARAA (RERE
which owns 69.8% of the Company’s shares as at 31 BRESEM) ZhH - HEEE A
December 2018. The ultimate controlling party of the Group NF)69.8% M o A B K A AR IZE AR

is Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI.

Name of related parties

BB S B8

C-MER Group Limited

FIHEEFR QA

Maida Medical Software Development (Shenzhen)
Limited

BEBRERERE ORI BRLQFE

Project Vision Charitable Foundation Limited

SEITREREESARAA

Asia-Pacific Academy Of Ophthalmology Limited

Asia-Pacific Academy Of Ophthalmology Limited

TRMIEHREERF L L -

Relationship with the Company
EAD A KR

Ultimate holding company

5§ ST @NC]

Common controlling shareholder (Dr. Dennis LAM)
and director (Ms. LI)

HEZERRR (RIEmEEE) REE (T t)

Common directors (Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI)

HEESZE MIBREERT L)

Common director (Dr. Dennis LAM)

HFAEF (WIEEE L)
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A EEmRME

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 31 BEBARZ (&)
(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (a) BREFEVBHREMIBHERE
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the BEN AEEMBEBRSET
following transactions with related parties: NS

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILLEE
2018 2017

2018 F 2017 €
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Ophthalmic services provided to a A BEEH A Bl AR LR 75
related company

— Project Vision Charitable —mBEIREEES
Foundation Limited AR AR 622 729
Management fee income from P=PPNN) NS sy
related companies EREBIA
— Asia-Pacific Academy Of — Asia-Pacific Academy Of
Ophthalmology Limited Ophthalmology Limited - 136
— Project Vision Charitable —mBEIREEEER
Foundation Limited BRAA 542 480
1,164 1,345
Rental expense paid to a related Y FREBARNEES
company
— Maida Medical Software —BERERERE
Development (Shenzhen) Limited G BR A A 9,257 9,045

The management fee income is received for the
administrative services provided by the Group to
the related parties. The ophthalmic service income,
management fee income and rental expense were
determined based on the terms mutually agreed
between the Group and the related parties.

EIREW AT LA S E W B 7 fR A
V1T BCE 12 AR A% M U R o AR AR 75 Uk
A EEBRARBEEERIREAR
5 B SR BER 0T KR 15 € M IRFREE ©
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 31 BEEAXRS (@)
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEAESHM

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017

2018 2017 %

HK$'000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Fees, wages, salaries, bonus we - ITE FHe - B4 5,833 6,213
Retirement benefits costs — defined 3R KIB R A AN — ERB AL FX

contribution scheme HEl 72 52

Allowances and benefits in kind EALREYRET 756 741

Share-based payments ARG 1D B B 1 3R 2,002 2,550

8,663 9,556

(c) Year-end balance with a related party () BEHEBAINFLRER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILEE

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Amount due to a related party JE {<F Bt 7 AR IE
Non-trade FES
— Project Vision Charitable —BEIREEER
Foundation Limited BRAA 20 153
The balances were unsecured, interest-free and EREHRAEBEERR 2ENEKREX
repayable on demand and were denominated in BE WAARKEHE -
Renminbi.
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32 SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2018:

Company name

LAER

C-MER Eye Care Medical Group
Limited
AERNEREEARAT

C-MER Eye Care Group Limited

AERMEEBRAA

Hong Kong (International) Eye

Care Group Limited
B (B RUBREEAR AT

C-MER Vision Limited

FBRNBRAA

Hong Kong C-MER International
Eye Care Group (China) Limited
EAABERRNEREE (TE)
BRAH

C-MER Investment Limited

EBREERAA

Shenzhen C-MER Dennis Lam Eye
Hospital*

AN BIBHIBHERR B

Shenzhen C-MER Hospital

Management Research Institute*
AmABBRERATR

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

kind of legal entity
HMAY/ KIS
REEERESR

The BV,
limited liability company

ABRREE ARALAA

The BV,
limited liability company
ABRAES  BRAMLLF

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

R BRELAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

2 BRELERT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&R BRELERT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&R BREEAT

The PRC,

wholly foreign owned enterprise

TEHEHBELE

The PRC,
private non-enterprise entity

PERAFERER

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BRARE/
EMEAFE

2,000 ordinary shares
US$2,000
2,000 R & @R
2,000E 7T

2,000 ordinary shares
US$2,000
2,000f% &
2,000% 7T

10,000 ordinary shares
HK$10,000
10,000 & i@/
10,0007 T

10,000 ordinary shares
HK$10,000
10,000 % &8 %
10,0008 71

500,000 ordinary shares
HK$500,000
500,000 3% & & &
500,000 7
HK$10,000
10,0007
RMB20,000,000
ARH20,000,0007
RMB100,000

AR%100,0007

e BRRME

Vo= NG
T AR2018F12 A3 BT E M
BARAE

Effective interest held
by the Company
AAAMGRERER
Directly Indirectly
EE S

Principal activities/
place of operation

TEER/LEHY

100% - Investment holding, HK
RELR BE
100% - Investment holding, HK

RARE &R

- 100%  Provision of ophthalmic

service, HK

RERRRS - £E

- 100%  Investment holding, HK

REZR &R

- 100%  Provision of ophthalmic

service, HK

RERRRS - BE

- 100%  Inactive

BXH

- 100%  Provision of ophthalmic
service, the PRC
RERERS - PE

- 100%  Inactive

BXH

_|_
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32 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32 B2 (&)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued ~ Effective interest held
establishment and share capital/ by the Company
kind of legal entity registered capital ~ AARFSERESR  Principal activities/
Company name EMERL/ R BERTRE/ Directly Indirectly place of operation
NAER RERERER AMERE EE M TEXK/EELY
Beijing C-MER Dennis Lam Eye The PRC, RMB60,000,000 - 100%  Provision of ophthalmic
Hospital Co., Ltd.* wholly foreign owned enterprise service, the PRC
ERAEBHERRNBRERAE TE HEBELR AR 60,000,000 RERRRS - PE
C-MER Hospital Management The PRC, RMB100,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* wholly foreign owned enterprise
ABBEREE (R ERAT TEAEBELR AE#100,0007C EXH
Shenzhen Xinan C-MER Dennis Lam ~ The PRC, RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Provision of ophthalmic
Ophthalmology Clinic* wholly foreign owned enterprise service, the PRC
AFZABREARRMZS  E HEBERE AR%20,000,0007C RERKERS  TE
Shenzhen C-MER Optical Trading The PRC, RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Sales of eyewear
Co., Ltd.* wholly foreign owned enterprise and eye care products,
the PRC
AFBEXEHERAA e NEEELE AR 1,000,000 HERBRRHERE
Em A
* English translation is for identification purpose only. The * B2 EMESN AR ETRET
English names of the group companies incorporated in the MKW EB AR W EEXE T A
PRC represent the best efforts by management of the Group B HEVNEBAAEEEEER
in translating their Chinese names as they do not have official ARG NBHEER X EERIZMNEK -

English names.

33 CONTINGENCIES 33 REFH
The Group was involved in a lawsuit for an alleged medical 7R 5 B (A 4% 15 I A7 AR Mg Bl B AT 1808 B
negligence in pre-surgical treatment and post-surgical MBERZAMEY — R o ExE2RE
treatment. The legal proceedings were commenced in FFi20165F3 ARERA o
March 2016.
Based on the advice from the legal advisers, management HENEEERNER BEEZAR
considers that it would be improbable for the plaintiff to ETAREMBEBRERAKINRE -

successfully pursue the claim for medical negligence.

As of the reporting date, no lawsuit provision has been REE HE - RN ARF AL IER
made as the outflow of resources for this pending lawsuit RRAERERRL R EEL R
is not probable. The directors consider there is no legal N E -EERA WMEHMERERF
proceedings that may have material impact on the Group’s FAT] BE B AN & IE’]%HW B 75 AR 0 &
business, financial conditions and operating results. CEEREELTEATE

‘ 188 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERMERERERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

3 RARWEERFBR

34 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 & 2017 &
128318 12HA31H
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
_Investments in subsidiaries  AHMBASORE 58,891 58169
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U Fff B 2~ T FUE 200,287 71,633
Prepayments and other TR FRIE B H Ath fE UK IE
receivables 1,842 5,853
Bank deposits with original JREVHA B8R =18 A &Y
maturity over three months RITHFH 249,099 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELFEY 304,792 42,537
756,020 120,023
Total assets WEE 814,911 178,192
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity ZAATEZEEAEEES
holders of the Company
Share capital SN 103,511 37
Reserves i a 696,922 161,252
_Totalequity  ##&= 800,433 161,289
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATBT B A B F B 10,476 6,724
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H AL RIE 4,002 10,179
_Total liabilities  #®&a& 14478 16,903
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 814,911 178,192
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34 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

3 AR EEEER(E)
(a)

RATNREERE

Contributed  Share-based
Share surplus payment Accumulated
premium (Note) reserve losses
KRB A
BARH ERNAR
RABE (i) e R EA EH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
T FET 7, T FET
Asat 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H - 57,617 - @1 57,576
Profit for the year ERFE - - - 55,421 55,421
Proceeds from issuance of shares  E{TRR 13 15 7UR 141,996 - - - 141,996
Dividend paid BERRE (20,000) - - (80,000 (100,000)
Share-based payment expenses WA BERME HFHR
(Note 23) (Fir3E23) - - 6,259 - 6,259
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 121,996 57,617 6,259 (24,620) 161,252
Loss for the year EREE - - - (2,298) (2,298)
Capitalisation of share premium ~ FRH EBE AL (80,263) - - - (80,263)
Issuance of shares upon listing = TRFE TR 551,600 - - - 551,600
Issuance of shares upon exercise  TAZA N IR 17 (B B2 1T
of over-allotment options Rin 82,740 - - - 82,740
Share-based payment expenses LRI AERMONTHET
(Note 23) (Rt 23) - - 6,547 - 6,547
Share issuance costs BB EATHA (22,656) - - - (22,656)
As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 653,417 57,617 12,806 (26,918) 696,922
Note: Pff3E -

As part of the Reorganisation, the Company acquired
interests in subsidiaries comprising the Group and assets and
liabilities of the operating business from Dr. Dennis LAM and
Ms. Li. As the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuance of
the operating business under the subsidiaries comprising the
Group, no fair value is applied to the acquired subsidiaries
interest and assets and liabilities. The difference between
the consideration paid to the equity holder and the original
investment of the equity holder is recorded as a contributed
surplus.
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35 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The events after the balance sheet date are disclosed as
follows:

(a)

On 15 February 2019, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to
establish a new hospital in Huizhou, Guangdong
Province, the PRC. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Group will inject RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,440,000) to the new hospital
and own 70% of its equity interests, while the other
investor will inject RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,046,000) and own the remaining
30% equity interests. Up to the date of approval for
issuance of these consolidated financial statements,
the incorporation procedures of the new hospital has
not been completed.

On 26 March 2019, the Group entered into an
agreement with independent third parties to acquire
100% equity interest of Shanghai Lucida Medical
Scientific Ltd (the "acquiree”) in Shanghai, the PRC,
at a maximum cash consideration of RMB82,900,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$97,349,000) which
is subject to contingent consideration payments based
on the cash and cash equivalents and equity value of
the acquiree at the date of completion. Up to the date
of approval for issuance of these consolidated financial
statements, the acquisition has not been completed.

35

_|_

e BRRME

"RERKRER
HERREERBOT

(@ M2019%F2A15H  K&EBHE
—ZBIF=ZHITIHBEUAR
hEEREEMNHMRIL R
Bt - REZ R AEEEM
e E AR 14,000,000
7t (A& 7 #916,440,0007% 7T)
ISR ET70% M E - T E
& & 15)E & AR ¥6,000,000 7T
(& 47,046,000 7T) It
BEHT30%ME EEHET
BRERAUBHRERAE o
B2 WO AR AR ST A2 7 18 R SEAK o

(b) HA2019%F3A26H  KEBEHE
BN E =R M AR E
EWEE EEB R EE RS
BEBRAFR ([#KER] &
100% K TaRaeREAR
AR #82,900,000 7T (FHE R4
97,349,000 7t) * Mz R {EAE
ZHWESTREXBBEHNRS
FReEEYVRBREEBETE
RIS AREBA KRR - EEHE
EHEZEFRAYBRERAE
W B 5 TH 15 R SERK ©
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MBEEREE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set
out herein, is set out below:

AREBRANHEH 2 EEFHRBERE
MRFEMNCTRXE BERABEME
o

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014

20174 20164 20154 20146
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET

2018
2018
HKS$000
FET
Results S

Revenue WA 429,374
Gross profit £ 149,337
Profit for the year FRFE 42,571
Adjusted net profit for the year M@ 4 pyA@ F & F | B 0 R0 44,592
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 34.8%
Net profit margin (%) FAEE (%) 9.9%
Adjusted net profit margin (%) 8@ 4 FHEE A &K (%) VE@ 10.4%

Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets EERE 886,849
Total liabilities BREEHE 53,144
Total equity R 833,705

Notes:

(1) Adjusted net profit is derived by adding listing expenses from the
net profit for the year.

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure
that is not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs
and is therefore referred to as a “non-GAAP” financial measure. It
is not a measurement of the Group’s financial performance under
HKFRSs and should not be considered as an alternative to profit
from operations or any other performance measures derived in
accordance with HKFRSs or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities or as a measure of the Group’s liquidity.

311,228 248,659 198,851 156,472
135,431 94,976 79,701 59,043
40,127 46,887 38,357 22,361
64,287 46,887 38,357 22,361

43.5% 38.2% 40.1% 37.7%
12.9% 18.9% 19.3% 14.3%
20.7% 18.9% 19.3% 14.3%

233,377 128,642 132,375 102,817
75,954 65,210 65,427 72,004
157,423 63,432 66,948 30,813

GEX

(1) AEEF N i R S LA R F AR
METEBH -

2) AR EFRAUNTERIE BB I
BEER BEVBRESEALESRE
IBARIRE M FMEEANZS > Eit -
ZEBERBFAREGFT RN NBBEGE
IR - W FRBEEMBRELRGE
REBNBHERFOTTE < LB D EHT
ERIERBBEMBREEAEENLZE
B REEEFMEMRBOEREBRRE
BEHRERENERESRBEAREE
HRBE S MEE
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